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INTRODUCTION

One of the most significant problems that the Depart-
ment of the Interior and the Federal Water Pollution Control
Administration have encountered in the setting of water
quality standards is what has come to be known as the "non-
degradation” issue. This issue arose last winter in the
application of Policy Guidelines Nos. 1 and 8 of the Depart-
ment's "Guidelines for Establishing Water Quality Standards
for Interstate Waters."

Guideline No. 1 states in part, "In no Case will stan-
dards providing for less than existing water quality be
acceptable." In the Department's view, this guideline meets
the Congressional intent of the Water Quality Act of 1965 to
“protect the public health or welfare and to enhance the
quality of water" for a variety of legitimate uses.

In order to implement the Congressional enhancement
policy, Guideline No. 8 requires that all wastes "...receive
the best practicable treatment or control." Most States
have interpreted this to mean secondary treatment.

Secretary Udall, at a press conference-on February 8,
1968, enunciated the basic policy statement on "non-degra-
dation." Since then, Congressional committees, States,
industries, and others have questioned the implications of
such a policy.

This compendium brings together the interpretations of
Secretary Udall and other Department of the Interior officials
relating to the meanir and impact of the "non-degradation”
policy. There are al.,. atta ~d copies of "non-degradation"
statements which have been approved by the Secretary. 1It.is
designed to contribute to an increased understanding of the
nature of the "non-degradation" issue and the way in which

it has been resolved.
\Mm{l [
oe G. Moore, Jr.
Commissioner
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FOR RELEASE ON FEBRUARY 8, 1968

WATER QUALITY DEGRADATION ISSUE RESQLVED

Secretary of the Interior Stewart L. Udall today issued
the follewing statement in connection with the review and
approval of water quality standards for interstate and coastal
waters:

During the past several weeks, I have given intensive
study to what has become known as "the degradation issue" in
connection with the water quality standards as submitted by
the States under the Water Quality Act of 1965.

I have resolved this basic policy issue in a way that
I believe is fair and equitable to all concerned and, at the
same time, entirely consistent with the policy and objective
of the Water Quality Act, which is to protect and enhance the
quality and productivity of the Nation's waters.

I have concluded that in order to be consistent with
the basic policy and objective of the Water Quality Act a
provision in all State standards substantially in accordance
with the following is required:

Waters whose existing quality is better than
the established standards as of the date on
which such standards become effective will be
maiptained at their existing high quality.
Ther e and other waters of a State will not be
lowered in quality unless and until it has
been affirmatively demonstrated to the State
water pollution control agency and the Depart-
ment of the Interior that such change is
justifiable as a result of necessary economic
or social development and will not interfere
with or become injurious to any assigned uses
made of, or presently possible in, such waters.
This will require that any industrial, public
Oor private project or development which would
constitute a new source of pollution or an



increased source of pollution to high
quality waters will be required, as part
of the initial project design, to provide
the highest and best degree of waste
treatment available under existing tech-
nology, and, since these are also Federal
standards, these waste treatment require-
ments will be developed cooperatively.

Because of the importance of this issue to the future
quality of America's waters and to the Nation's further
social and economic development, the decision that I have
made warrants some elaboration.

On the one hand, it is imperative that there be no
compromise with the Declaration of Policy as now set forth
in the Federal Water Pollution Control Act. This declaration
states: "The purpose of this Act is to enhance the quality
and value of our water resources and to establish a national
policy for the prevention, control, and abatement of water
pellution.”

On the other hand, it is also imperative_ that the
water quality standards provision of the Act be administered
in a way that will neither seek nor serve to stifle further
economic development in areas where interstate waters are
of high quality.

I am convinced that the resolution of this issue as
set forth above achieves the dual purpose of carrying out
the letter and spirit of the Act without interfering unduly
with further economic development.

A key factor in the resolution of the degradation
issue is the substantial upgrading of water quality that
will be achieved as secondary treatment of municipal wastes
and the equivalent for industrial wastes becomes the common
practice, as it will within a few years under the water
quality standards program,



PRESS BRIEFING BY SECRETARY UDALL, FEBRUARY 8, 1968

QUESTION: Mr. Secretary, on the degradation issue you
talked about here, you suggested a standard for all the
states. There seems to be a kind of loophecle in here, and
it says the change can be made if it is justifiable. What
do you consider justifiable?

SECRETARY UDALL: I had a conference with my people
before I came down here. And in reading the language it
appears to go up one side of the road and down the other.
And I think if you read it carefully, and maybe let some of
my people explain it to you, that you will see that essen-
tially this was the issue that something was written about.
I know Eric Wentworth wrote a piece in December. There was
a major argument between Commissioner Quigley and Secretary
Di Luzio on this. And I think in the main that I would say,
althcugh I don't think we covered the conclusion, that what
we really need is not to treat the water quality standards
as something that is hard and fast and set in concrete, but
we need to keep our own position where there is flexibility
and where we stay in the picture, we just don't approve
standards and send them back to the states, but we send them
back to the states with reservations and reserving our own
right to remain in the picture. And this is one of the main
things that has developed out of this. So essentially what
we say is that it is our view that the law, the intention of
the law is that there be no degradation, that we maintain
present quality.

Now, there are Bituations, however, that exist
where, for example, there may be needed decisions. Person-
ally, I think that this issue will largely wash out a year
or two from now as we get down the road, because what we
are going to be doing, if we can get the big national clean-
up going at the rate that we should, if this new legislation
passes, and if the states get in action the way that they
should, we are going to find that our waters are being up-
graded significantly on most lakes and rivers. And therefore
the problem of degradation in many areas will disappear.



But there may be some of these immediate situations
~where decisions are impending with regard to proposing addi-
tional uses of water.

So what we say is -- we have attached three condi-
tions. And as a basis for these decisions, the burden of
proof is on the proposed new use, whether it is an electric
power plant, or an industry using water, that they have to
show to the states' satisfaction, and more importantly, to
our satisfaction, that there are compelling social and econo-
mic reasons -- this would be a first condition — that they
are prepared to install the very latest and most modern
pollution control equipment, and thereby to minimize any
temporary degradation. And I think we should think of it in
that light.

And the third and final condition is that whatever
temporary degradation shall not violate the standards them-
selves in terms of uses.

Now, you have to understand the situation in the
sense that you may have water quality here but the standard
is below it. And that is where the argument occurred between
my Assistant Secretary and Commissioner, are you going to
keep it here, or if the standard is here, are you going to
let it be depressed to this point? And this is the way we
have tried to resolve this problem. We have been candid to
say that when we approved this first group of 10 or 12 states
that we approved we didn't have this provision in it. We
are going to go back to them and ask for its inclusion. We
think we will get it, because these first states that were
approved were the ones that had the best standards and were
the most cooperative.

And so I think we have a wnrkable solution. And
I think it also gives us more flexibility, and keeps us in
the picture.



LETTER FROM ASSISTANT SECRETARY EDWARDS TO SENATE MAJORITY
LEADER MICHAEL J. MANSFIELD, FEBRUARY 8, 1968:

* * * *

Before approving as federal standards those adopted by the
states, I must determine that the standards "protect the
public health or welfare, enhance th=2 quality of water, and
serve the purpbses of the (Federal Water Pollution Control)
Act," in accordance with Section 10(c) (3). The Department
of the Interior is firmly committed to implementing the
basic policy of the Act, which is to protect and enhance the
quality and productivity of the Nation's waters.

* * * *

In those instances where knowledge of present quality for
given streams is either absent or incomplete, it will be my
policy to insist on standards which protect existing quality,
rather than degrade. This is an obligation implicit in the
Federal Act.

Moreover, as our technology improves, we gather more data,

and learn more about quality requirements of water uses, we
expect to cooperate with the States in making necessary
amendments to the water quality standards which were approved-
previously.

Standards are being reviewed in the Department in light of
these principles, I shall insure that these policy require-
ments are met before I give my approval and make the deter-
mination that water quality standards are ~onsistent with
the provisions of the Federal Act.



LETTER FROM SECRETARY UDALL TO GOVERNOR JOHN A. LOVE OF
COLORADO, MARCH 26, 1968:

* * * *

The policy I announced against degradation of existing water
quality where this quality exceeds the adopted standards is
designed to protect, for generations to come, the valuable
water resources of this country. I am sure you will agree
that the many c¢lean lakes and streams of Lolorado are a de-
finite asset to your State. We are simply requesting that
our mutual goal of protecting high quality waters from de-
gradation be clearly spelled out and made a matter of public
record, and it is to this end that I urge you to adopt a
statement similar to that expressed in the Department news
release of February 8, 1968.

I want to assure you that it is not our intent to supplant
State programs, but rather to assist them in carrying out
water pollution control responsibilities. Further, I do not
intend by the administration of the statement on degradation
to propose Federal control of economic development, not to
stifle such development in Colorado. Rather, I want to
assure that standards satisfy the intent of the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act, as amended, to protect and enhance -
water quality. As social and economic development takes
place, the standards should remain a means of focusing on
the potential impact such developments can have on water
quality, of causing full attention to be given to this im-
pact and means of accomplishing development without destroy-
ing precious clean waters, of determining the suitability

of particular locations, and of facilitating the design of
such developments so that damage to water quality is mini-
mized. I do not think that the location or operations of
industrial or other developments have always reflected this
consideration in the past, and the deterioration of our
Nation's waters is the result.

I agree that standards should be approved as soon as possible

so that the joint Federal-State water pollution control pro-
grams can proceed quickly and smoothly. 1In this regard, I

-6 -



urge you to support an early public hearing date so that
agreed-upon revisions in Colorado's original standards can
be formally approved and transmitted to Washington. Prior
to the public hearing, we will be sitting down with your
water pollution control staff for a final discussion of this

Department's position on water quality standards for Colorado's
interstate waters.



LETTER FROM ASSISTANT SECRETARY EDWARDS TO CONGRESSMAN
JOHN D. DINGELL, MARCH 5, 1968:

* * * *

You and members of the Michigan United Conservation Clubs
have urged that water quality standards not permit existing
water quality to degraded. This Department concurs.
Secretary Udall has resolved this basic policy issue in an
equitable fashion, consistent with the philosophy of the
Water Quality Act to protect and enhance the quality and
productivity of the Nation's waters. Before d¥ranting
approval to any further water quality standards, the Sec-
retary is requiring that a State include a provision for
the protecticn of present water quality. Furthermore, the
Secretary is going back and telling the States that do not
have such a provision, because their standards were approved
prior to this policy decision, to revise their standards
and include one.

The Secretary has stated publicly, and I believe this is
particularly important, that this policy puts-the burden of
proof on any potential polluter to prove his case to the
State pollution control agency and the Secretary of the
Interior.

The Secretary has said, "If we err on any questions we want
to err on the side of safety. We want to make sure that
there is a margin of safety for all agreed-on uses in deter-
mining the specific water quality criteria that are necessary
to ¢ contribute to those waters." In order to carry out
this philo: “phy, another recently established Departmental .
policy sets a general range of acceptable values for the key
indicators of water quality, such as dissolved oxygen and
temperature.

It has become apparent to us that some of the standards that
were approved last summer will require upgrading if they are
to meet these high requirements which we feel are mandated
by the Act. We are now reviewing the ten States' standards



:nitially approved to assure that they adhere to our policy.
7 they do not, we will ask for appropriate upgrading re-
risions.

-
L

* * * * * * * * *

Tinally, in your correspondence, you expressed the view that
=~e Department should exert its full authorized role in the
::s;gnation of the use category intoc which waterways are
slaced.

The State has the initial responsibility for determining the
ucse category, as a part of the standards setting process.

You may be certain that in our review of the proposed State
standards, we are very much concerned that all the legitimate
u3es of the waterways specified in the Federal Act -- public
water supplies, propagation of fish and wildlife, recreation,
2gricultural, industrial, and other legitimate uses ~- be
considered and adequately represented. When we feel that this
s not the case, we are insisting as a condition of approval,
that the uses be upgraded.

If the Secretary determines that the State will not consider
the uses mentioned in Section 10 (c) (3) of the Act, or that
the water quality standards adopted by the State did not meet
the criteria in that Section, the Secretary than can initiate
action to establish water quality standards. 1In that case,
the Secretary calls a conference in accordance with the Act
iand publishes water quality standards which later become the
final standards, if the State fails to adopt acceptable water
Juality standards within six months from the date of this
p“bllcatlon. or if the governor of a State fails to petition
for a public hearing.

The Secretary believes that it is incumbent upon him to pur-
Sue an active role to the fullest extent of the authority
Provided by the Federal Act in order to protect high quality
‘aters and upgrade polluted ones. This Department will
“igorously pursue these objectives and we hope you will
continue to provide us with your support and guidance.



HEARINGS BEFORE THE SENATE COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC WORKS,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON AIR AND WATER POLLUTION, MARCH 27, 1968

Principles: The principles which we have used in reviewins the
water quality standards are as follows: -

(1) No dezradation of existing water quality. Protection of
existing water quality was stated in cuideline No. T provided to
the States, which read:In no case will standards providing for

_lessthan existing water quality be acceptable.” c

Now, we feel, Mr. Chairman, that this was the intent of the 1963
act, and we find most of the States ready to go along. We don't under-
stand the necessity of disputing it, but I think we are moing to be able
to bring them around. =T

Senator Mrskie. I think, Mr. Secretary, that you and I agreed upon
that standard before the formal guidelines were put together.

Secretary Upare. That is correct.

Senator Mcskie. In our discussion we agreed this ought to be the
minimum goal.

Secretary Uoact. There is no question but that we can't have a water
quality improvement prozram if we have standards and rules »hich
permit water to be degraded further.

_ <\s we really move into high gear, we must not simply avoid degrada-
tion, but we must actually improve water quality. I'here are many
communities and industries that put raw eflluents into rivers and lakes.
Every new treatment facility that is put into action, by that fact helps
to upgrade the quality of water.

If we seo to it that all new industries put in the most modern equip-
ment, and this is becoming the order of the day, then I think we wiil
have a completely ditfercnt picture than the one which we confronted
a few yearsago. _

"Senator Mussme. I don’t want to interrupt at this point but I do
want to indicate here a more comnplete discussion will take place later
in the record.

Secretary Uparr. Our second principle is:

(2) No ters shall be used solely or principally as a waste
carrier.

(3) All wastes mu receive the best practicable treatment or
control prior to discharge into any interstate water, unless it can
be demonstrated that a lesser degree of treatment or control will
provide for water quality enhancement commensurate with pro-

resent and future water uses. This was outlined to the
tates in guideline No. 8.

In practice, we are secking, and for the most part the States are
making, a commitment in standards’ implementation plans to sec-
ondary treatment for all municipal wastes within the next 5 years. An
equivalent degrce of treatment or control is outlined for industry.

(4) General acceptable range of values for key indicators of
water quality: This requirement was formed during the review of
the first few States standards. It soon became clear that there
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was a wide variation in values assigned to key water quality cri-
teria - dissolved oxygen and temperature - by different States,
even neighboring States. Some were permissive; some were very
rigid. For example, deviation of temperature above natural tem-
perature fluctuations ranged from 0°F to 15°F to no limit at all.

There are gaps in our information on the present quality of some
waters and the natural requirements of aquatic life and the environ-
ment, We determined that standards which we approve shall be set
within safe limits, rather than at the extreme limit of what we believe
aquatic life can tolerate.

In this way, if new information proves us wrong, any error is on the
side of protection and conservation rather than destruction of an
assigned use. ! . .

In" some cases, we may find that we have required a quality that
may be higher than necessary to protect a given use. We believe this
is a reasonable requirement to protect our resources and aquatic life
in the face of incomplete knowledge.

The Department has, therefore determined generally acceptable
ranges for temperature deviations from natural conditions and for
amounts of dissolved oxygen in al interstate waters.

(5) There must be consistency among standards of adjacent and
downstream States: This is a very basic criterion. We must recog-
nize that standards will vary to some extent in different parts of
the country and in States with differing water use desires and
financial and technical capabilites. However, for common waters
or adjoining sections of waterways, the standards must be con-
sistent. Those 10 States standards that were initially approved
are now under review to assure that they will be consistent with
the higher standards we are seeking from the States today.

Senator MUSKIE. The conclusion seems clear from what you just
said, Mr. Secretary, that with respect to the 10 States you are operat-
ing in terms of the lower level of performance that you did sub-
sequently. In other words, you shifted into a higher gear at some point
there and you are now requiring higher standards than the first one
you approved. Now you are going back to review those standards.

Secretary UDALL. Senator, there is one thing | think we understand
very clearly today, that we did not completely understand a year ago.
We had an oversimplified concept of the whole process of standards
setting. We were thinking more at that time, for example, of the
States coming in and presenting something and of our rubberstamping
it and sending it back to them.

We realize now that is going to be an on-going process. We are
deliberately singling out things where we don't have sufficient scien-
tific data, where we don't know what the answers are. We are agreeing
with the States that we will not have approve certain water quality cri-
teria, that we are going to wait and study them and make decisions
later when we have adequate knowledge.

The no-degradation issue surfaced in November; we had approved
several State standards prior to that time without a no-degradation
provision. We have gone back to them and indicated that we feel it
is needed, but we realize now that the standards setting is an on-going
process, and we are going to be carrying this on year in and year out
as we go down the road; it is not something that is done and com-
pleted. 1 think this is something we didn't realize a year ago.

Senator SPONG. Mr. Chairman, may | ask the Secretary a question?
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Senator MeskiEe. Yes, Senator Spong.

Senator Sroxg. Did you then contemplate a periodic approval in
the future of standards?

Secretary Upace. I think what we are going to find. as we get the
cleanup prograin going in high gear, is that the people in the country
are going to realize that we can inprove the quality of waters, that we
can raise the standards, that the standards that we have set in 1967
and 1968 can be improved and that we should come back and up-
erade themn further as this cleannp program begins to take hoid and
as our techuological capability for handling wastes improves.

So. what we are dving with some of the troublesome questions and
where we don’t know all of the facts and the data we should know
about water quality, is to reserve some of these issues. We ure simply
agreeinye that we will come back at a subsequent date and we will
make decisions at that time rather than feeling that we have to decide
every (uestion rigrht now.

Senator Muskie. Let me ask this question which I think is implicit
in the question that Senator Spong has raised.

I fl:}l_\' concur with this idena of continuing review and the stimula-
tion of an evclutionary process of water quality enhancement. At the
same time you have got to give the States something that they can
relv on.

Now, how does it relate to that ? For example, if a certain river basin
is given a timetable to achieve certain performance, is it conceivable
that the timetable will be accelerated at some time in the future, not-
withstanding the approval of that timetable today ?

Secretary UpaLt. As to the timetables, we have had the genernl
objective of secondary treatment in 3 years, and I think the accom-
plizlunent of this depends, in the main, on passing the legislation that
we have submitted to raise the Federal assistance level up where the
Congress proposed it be so that we can get the construction program
going full tilt. °

I think that unless we do this, it is unrealistic to think we can accel-
erate the timo phase.

I think, on the other hand. that if we do get up a full head of
steam in the construction program, and if the Federul Government
makes its commitment then it is foreseeable that there would be, in
some areas, an acceleration of the action timetable.

Senator Bavir. Mr. Chairman

Senator Mcskre. Is that made clear to the States? Is this policy

clear in the States aud to the polluters whose activities may conceiv-
ably come under constructive control? ’
. _retalg UbaLL. Senator, to give you an exa e, in the Lake
Michigan Enforcement Conference, we have a time frume that .. very
clearly understood by everyone. Everyone understands that the stan?-
ards have no meaning unless you are going to have a program to move
toward the clecanup goals,

Senator Muskie. May I put one more question and then Senator
Bayh because he has one.

Ay question is this: It strikes me that what you have in mind is
this, that the first timctable relates to the first phase of the process of
Improving water quality. When you speak of accelerution you spenk
of greater momentum as the next phase comes along rather than a
reframing of the rules with respect to the first phase except on those
things that you have reserved for future decision.

Secretary Ubarr. You stated it correctly.

Senator Muskie. Senator Bavh.
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Senator Bavi, Thank vou. Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Secrotary, this advanced acceleration which I salute you for,
hoy can this be done still requiring pollution control and hava it done
at losw-dotlar cost as efficiently as you can when I can see the possi-
bility if I were rurning industry X. for exampie, and [ knew that an
expendirure of o many dollars would meet the present standards and
it wonld be much more eflicient for me to zo ahead und o all the wav
as far as the art has advanced and vet in the long-range sequence nf
events this is what I am going to be required to do? ~

How can we urwe industry to go ahead and go as far as the art has
advanced. even thourh this may be 50 percent turther thun tie present
standards require when you are going to come alang 4, 5 vears. maybe
14+ vears from now and up the standards and then it would be much
more expensive for me to go ahead and put this in the program!

Seeretary Unant, Well, Senarer, T don ¢ want to oo into ton ereat
detail on this. I will let my experts, if vou want, pursue it further.

I think there is an awareness today among industry that we didn’t
have 2 or 3 years ago. We certainly didn’t have it before the 14965
act passed. Industry realizes that there is a new national goal, that
the Congress means business, that this is a rigorons proeram of
cleanup, and that industry should, in new plant construction. put in
the best and most modern pollution control equipment available.

I think this is generally accepted becanse industry realizes that
evervone under the water quality standards prograin is roughly on
equal footing nationwide. Igor, example. the day 1s past when a pulp
miH can say, “We are going to run away from Maine or Indiana or
Michigan and go to some othier State where the standards are lower
anid where water pollution control equiprnent is not required.”

This is what used 10 be talked about even a few yvears ago. We still
have the problem of the old plants that dill not huve any equipment
at all or tEat had ponr equipnient. ‘This is where the impuct is particu-
larly heavy on industry becausc this is nsually more unccononucal and
costly to build pollution control equipment into a plant if you did
not engineer-it in in the first place. )

Here is where the pinch is and where it is difficult to get action
that would be accelerated beyond the type of schedules that we are
talking about.

I think Senator Muskie is right, that we are going to see an
accclerated sccond phase. But 1 would think we are going to be
fortunate, economic and budget conditions being what they are,
if we can keep the first phase on schedule. This would be my general
fecling about 1t.

Senator Baym. In other words, you would still want all of us in
our pronouncements and we would want all the States to urge industry
to go as far as they ibly could as far as the a1t had advanced
now, and this is beyond the present.

Secretary Uparr. That is correct.

Senator Muskir. Let me clarify that point in my own mind. I think
it isa very important one.

I think it is our objective in both air and water pollution to control
and stimulate the policy of constructing all of the treatment technology
that is available in new plants. It is conceivable that in a given industry
the statc of the art may be moving so rapudly that to take ad\'am:\%e
of current technology may bo uneconomic in the long run and possibly
even u disservice to the cause of water quality.

It is hard to envision that Kind of situation, but what would be
the policy with respect to a company building a new plant and putting
in all current technology if 5 veary later you reviewed the progrun
at the river basin involved and decided that you had to have better
performance? What would be the policy with respect to such a
plant?
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Secretary Unace. Well, Senator, I don't think that the technolooy
is zoing to improve in a dramatic way. What we find generally is that
yes. technology is improving. Usnally if technology improves, that
means you can o it more efliciently and at less cost.

What tends to offset increased efficiency is inflation. Your costs are
woing up for the type of facility that you are building. At the same
ume, if the efficiency of your engincering and your technoloygy is
unproving, costs usually stay about the same.

Now, if someone comes :ﬁong with some dramatic new process and
you might achieve a significant breakthrough, then you would regret
that vou had built a more expensive facility,

My expericnce has been in this ficld that science just does not gen-
erully wotrk that way through something sudden and dramatic but
rather through gradual iinprovement. Therefore, I don’t think most
industries are going to be faced with this type of decisitn. Otherwise,
this would be very bad from my point of view because they would all
be saving: “We are going to wait until we hear something good is
coming along.” We would, therefore, encounter delays, and we would
not meet our deadlines for implementing the water quality standards.

Maybe Mr. Moore or Mr. Edwards would like to add to ny com-
ments, but this is my general impression,

Senator Muskie. I want to have a frank discussion of this point be-
cause. this is obviously going to be used, I think, to resist eflorts and
re(}uirements for incorporation of technology.

s it also true that ofien new technology builds on old technology so
that you don’t necessarily discard the old because you have new devel-
opments and new advancements?

I would like to have Mr. Moore comnient on this general problem.

Mr. Moore. Mr. Chairman, if I may, it scems to me that the question
of the technology that could be applicd to waste treatment would be in
the same nature of technology generally in terms of whatever the in-
dustrial process is. It seems to me thot even in designing a plant to
produce a given product the business faces the prospect that the tech-
nology upon which its process will be based will also change during a
relatively short perind of time.

Senator Murskm. Of course, the difference there is that when you
talk about the cost processes that produce goods, then the expectation
of additional profits or higlier profits would provide the means for
using the new technology.

Mr. Moone. Yes, sir.

Senator Mcskie. Whereas, with respect to this problem, you don't
have to have the source for financing.

Mr. Moore. That is correct, but it secins to me that the risk i~ sub-
stantially of the same type.

Now, I do think that as a matter of practice the industry ought to
be able to rely with some degree of certainty upon the requirements
that will be imposed upon it for the future. At the same time, it seems
to me that industry must also recognize that as conditions change in
terms of water availability over long periods of time, and as the pub-
lic expectations or requirements change, they should be prepared to
meet those requirements in the same sense that they wouid meet any
other requirement. e

I do think that a distinction has to be made between an existing

lant and one that is proposed for new construction, because in the
atter case vou do get certain economics. Somectimes industries dis-
cover that they can build in a margin of safety in the initial construc-
tion at a relatively small propertionate increase in investment.

I think really that all we are saying is that where that is possible,
it would be the better part of prudence for the industry to include that
matrgin in their design.
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I agvee that you should not impose a requirement upon industry and
then at the same time imply that at sowe relatively near future dare
von are zoing to impose a hizher requirement. T think there will de-
velop in practice less difficulty in this area. however, than is sometimes
antivipated.

Senator Musiar. T thinl that is probably right.

Wounld you want to acd anything to that, Mr. Edwards?

Mr. Epwaros. Mr. Chairman, I would say, and I am referring
now to the nondegradation language, that we are expecting waste
treatment facilities from municipahities and industry to be the best
available ander existing technology.

Now, I think we have to assume that there will Le some degree
of reasonableness implied in mterpreting what existing technology is.
Sercttor Meskie, I want to get into the degradation issue later.

Rather than delay the Secretary’s statement too longs, does anyone
on the comniitree want to raise a question related to the very narrow
point we have been discussing? )

I not, why don’t you go aliead and I will try to avoid any inter-
ruption until von linish,

Secretary Unarte All right.

[ at the bottom of page 5.

(6) To mect the goals established by the act, water quality
standards must be mﬁ-quntc to protect and upgrade water quality
in the face of population and industiial growth, urbanization,
and technological change.

(V) There shall be no exemptions from the standards for a
particular industry, or for a particular area,

(5) Standards must be feasible and achievable. Through all the
standards setting process runs the important consideration of rea-
sonableness. We do not seck clean water for its own sake, but
for man’s benelit. In balance, our clean water eftorts must, there-
fore, be reasonable,

POLICY TROBLEM

The most significant policy prolblem and issue arose with relation to
the application of policy guideline No. 1—that water quality standards
should provide for the enhancement of water quality, and. particu-
larly, that standards should in no case provide for less than existing
water quality.

Nosw, it was our view that this was to start a cleanup and to enhance
the Nation's wuters, and that existing water quality would be a floor
from which you would move upwurd rather than something beneath
which you might go.

This became knows: as the “degradation issue,” and I found myself
in Jate December withu retiring Commissioner and a retiring Assistant
Secretary in rather strenuous disagreement on this issue. So, we
worked on thiz, Mr. Chairman, during the entire month of January;
we discussed all of the facets of the problem.

In our policy guideline No. 1 in the “Guidelines for Establishing
Water Quality Standards for Interstate Waters,” we told the States
that standards had to protect existing Ligh quality waters, as well as
enhanece presently polluted waters. The question arose as to how to
interpret and carry out the policy of protecting clean waters in the
face of necessary social and economic development.

I had to give intensive study to this matter in order to steer a clear
and workable course between prohibiting any treated waste discharges
to clean waters, on the one ‘mnd, and allowing clean waters to be
dearaded down to the miniinum levels for supporting ‘water uses, on
the other.



Secretary UparL. This policy will require clore Federal-State co-
operation and will complement specific Federal and State programs
designed to preserve certain waters for posterity, such as that envis-
aged by the proposed legislation on wild and scenic rivers, which
pas<cd the Senate last year and is now before the House committee.

The no-degradation policy, as well as our treatment policy expressed
in guideline No. §—that all wastes amcnable to trcatment will
be trcated—puts the burden on the discharger to prove that he is not
goinz to degrade water quality or jeopardize any existing or po-
tential uses of clean waters, or damage the indigenons aquatic life.

As social and economic developments take place, the standards
should remain a way to focus on the pntcntiarim uct which such
developinents can have on water quality; to cause full attention to be
given to this impact: to accomplish development without destroy-
ing precious clean waters: to determine the suitahility of particular
industrial locatione; and to facilitate the design of such development
so that damage to water quality is minimized.

I do not think that the location or operations of industrial or other
developments have always reflected this consideration in the past, and
the deterioration of our Nation's waters has been the result.

In implementing the no-degradation policy, we will be working
closely with the States through tlie cooperative channels which to-
gether we have already developed. We do not intend to supplant State
proerams, but to assist the States in carrying out water pollution con-
trol responzibilities. At the same time. I think that we have to be in-
valved in these far-reaching decisions to assure the orderly and wise
developiment and preservation of onr water resources.

We were siowed down somewhat by the deeradation izzue, and we
have al-o met delav while some States were acting on certain revisions.
Since the first of the vear, we have made a number of approvals, how-
ever, bringing the total to 25 States and one territory. In many cases,
there are somne parts of these standards which I could not approve,

and in those instances we singled these out for further negotiations.
These are listed in the stutus report which I have given you und we
would like this placed in the record at this point. i

Senator Musxie. Without objection, it will be placed in the record.

* * * *

Secretary Uparr. Mr. Edwards will discuss our purpose in making
these exceptions.

The status report also shows which States already have acceptable
nlnt(ildcgmdation language, and which States have been asked to in-
clude 1it.

Wo intend to go back to the States whose standards were approved
last summer, based on the new policy and on the experience which we
have guined to date, and, where changes are needed in the standards,
we will request them.



We have not yet formally asked the 10 States whose standards were
approved last summer to adopt antidegradation languace, except the
State of Iduho, I have publicly indicated that this will be expected.

We feel that we should wait before actually writing to the other
nine Governors until we are sure of any other chunges which we
micht consider necessary now in the light of submissions fron. anid
standurds approved for. contiquous States. Our goal is to achieve
resional consistency, and we have been successful in large part in
this ohjective.

We have lind mnueh experience in standards-setting since last year.
As pr.rt of the no-degradation policy, we have adopted more stringent.
yet attainable, criterin—especially with recard te tailoring dissolved
oxveen and temperature limits to existing high quality conditions. or
to upcorading these for the better protection of various resquree uses,
particularly ‘the fish and wiidlife resource. Assistant Sceretary Ed-
wards will be discussing this further.

We have completed our review work on all of the States’ standards,
and much supplementary material has come in. We are continuing to
necotiate with the States when necessary, and the time we have spent
in negntiation is well worth it, we feel, because it has helped, in most
cases, to strengthen our relationships with the States and to cause the
States to face up to a number of hard problems.

It is evident that this whole standards etfort has captured the ener-
gics and imaginations of the water people in the States—Governors
and legislators, as well as water pollution control officials and private
citizens.,

I mizht add that the bonus construction grants have been a help in
Lrincing support at the State level.

We are close to obtaining approvable standards {from nearly all the
States, and I am now aiming for at least partial approval of the stand.
ards of all 50 States, the District of Colambia, 'm(l the Territories, by
the first of June.

I don’t knnw whether we can actually meet that deadline, and I don't
want to malke this as a flat promise. I do want to say to the comnittee
that we feel it better to take a little more time and be thorough abont
it and be sure that we give the States a full opportunity to come into
agreemnent with us rather than to issue ultimatums and fix deadlines.

There will be a period, I suzpect, Mr. Chairman. come June, when
we will have left a few hard cases upon which we may have to put some
deadlines. I don’t want to begin to do that at this paint beeause, us long
as we have good faith negotiations going forward, as long as my
people are bringing in every week another State approval or two to my
desk, so that Ig can write the Governor and = rove the standards,
usually with some conditions attuched, I feel tii.. we are making good
headway.



SENATOR MUSKIE ASKED AN ADDTIONAL QUESTION AFTER THE
HEARING TO CLARIFY RESPECTIVE FEDERAL-STATE RESPONSIBILITIES:

1. In your statement you discusscd the “degradation™ isaue and its resolution.
Could you furnish the Committee 10ith an indication of the reepective roles
of the Department and the States in evaluating the impact of a proposed
municipal or industrial facility on cpplicable water quality standarda?

Answer. Ax with the establishment of water quality standards, the initial
responsibility for implementing the standards program rests with the State water
pollotion control agencies. In view of this, we will first be lonking to the States to
evaluate the iwpact of waxte di-charces from proposed muuicipal vr indystrial
facilities an water quality standards. The Federal role would normally Le to pro-
tide the Ntates with maximum support in order that they may accomplish their
responsibility in the most effective manper. Any Federal review would be done
at ao eariy stage to avoid undue delay in decisions on rcquircments. Accom-
plishing our objectives will require the maintenance of a close and mutually re-
spevctful retationship between Federal and State agencies concerned with water
polintiou. Tn a large extent, this relationship has been developed in the estab-
Hshwent of standards.

While we rccognize the primary role of the States, the Federal Water Polla-
tion Contrel Administration will maintain the capability of reviesing proposals
and to make whatever additional Investizations nre required to allow an inde-
pendent Judginent concerning the effect of new facilities on standards.

* * * *

DURING THE HEARINGS SENATOR COOPER ASKED A SERIES OF
QUESTIONS. QUESTIONS AND THE RESPONSES BY THE FEDERAL
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ADMINISTRATION ARE INCLUDED BELOW:

* * * *

3. In arriring at Statc tratcr quality standards. hoir harve the Stuairs been
cnalbied 1o knovw precixely what constitulex “aceondurv treatinent " —chick ns |
understund from pour tortimonw wou st upon Yor all diacharged efflurnts? and

4. Hax the Nepartment aupplicd thc States with w preciee definition of second-
ary treatmoent for municipal wasic?

The Department has not supplicd the State< with a precise definition of sec-
ondary treatment for wunlcipal wastes. The Departirent has been firm in re.
quiring a high doegree of treatment consistent with existing and practical
teclurolozy, but it has not adopted a rigid requirement for vecondars toeatment
nor a rigid definition of thix level of treatment. The spevific teems applied In
the standanis have generadly been left ta the jndazment of the States,

Rome Statex have Hwited their uecitientione to pequiring a8 mintmam of
Cwecondare treatinent.” Wo have not olijected to this approach. iMher States
have required a specific percent reduction of eolids and biochemical oxygen
deniad, A few Rates have adopled elfuent standiards to complettuent . zene-
ccat reqnivement for seconstary treitment.

T mee stapdards chavacterize an sweeptabte efffaent in nvmertenl terms of
Diochenvicil onygen demaml, sespended solils and othor parameters. Where
this action has Iuwen taken by o State, we bave reenznized that this is the Siate's
prevazative but. even when the overdl shindards receive Foderal approval, this
does 1ot mean Foderal ciffuent standards are in foree, Fhe desiznation of <pe-
cifte 2 uent quality on this luicic ien Statenatter.

These mattees are disens<ed in greater detail in o sulimission to the hearing
reened in response to Semator Muskie's question concernitg the definition of
levels of treatinent.
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S e ot wupplivd A e Suitine nf Cleopepnrahi frestment™ for smdustond
1ot e ehiin D sl vstoed i nlnée g e vy o geted ol Stads cteand iy ? and

oo e o fart Do an it the horat Csoetdacu teootina wdT o ome e areth
resp ot i e s Lineis af cid et el polletion”

15 s o~ where e sitates bave eoaferced with the Deportmertowe hinve <nz-
gos oy iering the teem an sqanvalent Nizh degres af teeatuueent™ rathee than
“cecntu]l v otrratment.” pertierlarcie in references tonorsanie industrial wastes,
Wi VoAt in Lot Lave specificatinns shefinine appronrinte ranece af rreatment
techinntose witlh eespasct to 0l of the varions Kinds of indastrial potleants,
bir el infoemation is cnreertiy haing deveioped by the Foderal Water Polla.
fion Ceerd Vnponistention. [y sencrad, “the indasteiad equivalent to secomd-
arv treatieent” may be interpreted ax redncing the nreanie level, nil, grease,
solide dinalia, aends, tovic materints rolor and turbidite, taste nund odaor-praondaing
suhstanees, aml other deliterions materials to the lowest prarticable level

T lpdertstine the stapedards, primary responsibility far determing the

sracteable treatient” for individual waste discharsers resre with the
ater pollutinn ~antrol agencies, with the assistanee of the Federal Water
{aliaerer Control Adminiseration

T flaw ix it navahle o the totee 0o commil themsclres ta sninrcinn thie
dengee a? vanteal of thew wve yot supplicd with seientefic and techneend infarmn.
Litsns s 10 rfeat (d con<dibute x far coach lLind of pulistant !

The techinieal staff of State water pollantion control azencics nsanlly have
AN v artiess of winie constitstes avaitable treatmene teclinolosy far vavions cote-
sories ol industrial wasios T eshithlishing specihe teeatment reguivemeats for
indiend ol waste discleesers the €ane azewry can take tlus infarmatinn ints
Aceacar In o relition te *Ye tere of plant, wiste eamnosition pnd ather pertinent
information an the individnal factary eoncerned. If the State pallntion car.
trel authoriiy Loks toe teclinicad campetence to evaduate some citeZorics nf
wasies, technieal assistones ean be furnishert by the Federal Water Pollution
Conrtto!t Mhinistrationg A« indicated above, we will bee develnping information
to tasist 1o deltermining the “best practicable treatwent™ for wastes {rom
speaatic types of industey or shecilic waste components, and this information will
be communicated to the State water pollution cuutrol agencies as it is developed.
In the 1nterim, experience with treating discharges baving similar characteris-
fies ¢an Le used. For exnample, treatineut techoology for wunicipal wastes is well
kuown apd therefore there is little question as to what constitutes feasible
techinjozy. Likewise, the high degree of treatment already given to a wide
variety of industrial wastes cau be used as a guide for cowparable wastes.

S. 4r industry plans to install control measurcs, hoiwc is it to Khow thut the
crpensine cquipment or mcasures it will dbe required to undertake will be supi-
cient—und will not soon de ovcrtaken by some ncro intcrpretation or requeast
from the FIWPCAY

Ve do not anticipate rapid changes in requirements; however, we do not believe
that an industry can be given an ironcliad guarantee that it will pever be required
tv ucdertake new or additivnul waste control measnres. Wuste control reguire-
wents may change with future developments of technology, process chanzes aud
piact espansion or sociil iand economic developuent. llowever, the present
Hasie rreatment reguircments are not intended to be moditicd jn the oear future,
or at least during the Hrat 3-7 year phase of standards impleentation.

9 The procodure, ox [ undcrstand o, appoars to be almaxt the reverse of
thnt cetablished under the dir Quatity Act of 1967. That is, instcad vf directing
control efforts to the qualily of the water in the siream, it appears by admin-
Dtratire decigion, (o he dirceted 1o control of pullutunt sowxrces icithout re-
qare troee the quatity nf the watcr—und for the wecs wkich I delicve it was the
intent af this Conmittee to rexeree 10 the Statcs.

The Department is not aittempting to control polintion sources without rezard
for the quality of the water in the stream ur its uses. The stroug stand of the
De-pasttie-nt on comtrol of potlation sources is consistent, we feel, with the intent
of the Federnl Water Pollution Control Act to enhance water quality. The Act
provides that standaeds of quality estabiisked shall enhance the quatlity and
cupsider lezitimaw nsese Under the Act, the stadierds are to consist of a plan
ol antlementation sy well as stream quality eriteria. Au offective pollntion con-
trol prasran anuast rely ol u strong implementation plan providing for teeat-
e nt ated control of wiaste discharges sis well as on cuforcement of stream
CRerin per s, We do nat belleve that the intent of the Water Quality Act of
I'wil—1o upzgade polluted waters and to protect those waters which are still
Clean—can e accamplished without ealling for senerally hizh waste treatment
requuirciuents in these implementation plans. Experience has shown that, in
the fuce of continmed population and industrial growrh and rising intensity of
woter dise. it bigh degree of treatmoent is accessary 1o ilprove existing conditions
atul to prevent the continmad zradnal detertoration that has occurred in the
past. The need to strive for optimsmy rather than marzinal couditions for
stpnorring beneticial water uses Is the keystone to the enhancewent of water
qualiry,

er
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AT SENATOR MUSKIE'S REQUEST A PAFER ON LEVELS OF TREATMENT
AND THE WATER QUALITY STANDARDS PROGRAM WAS PREPARED AND
INCLUDED AS A PART OF THE SENATE HEARINGS:

During the oversicht hearinus, additioual informativn was requested as to
the use of the terms “priruary’” and “secondary™ treatmeut as they relate to
water quality standards.

First of all, these terms were not nsed in the “Guiideliues for Establishias
Wuarer Quality Standards fur loterstnte Waters” is<uei L the Deparugent of
the Interior in day 10U6 and revised in Jaouury 1V67. Guideline No. 8 provides
as follows:

“8. No standard will be approved which allows any wastes amenable to treat-
ment or control to be discharged intn any interstate svater without treatment or
control regardiess of the water quality criteria aud water use or uses adopted.
Further, no standard will be approved which does not require all wastes, prior
to discharze into any ioterstate nater, to receive the best practicabie trcatment
or coptro! unless it can be demonstrated that a lesser degree or treatment or
control will provide for water quality enbancetnent commensurate with pro-
posed present and future water uses.”

Note that refereace here is wmade only to “the best practicable treatment or
control.” Io «iscussions with the States and in public refcrences this phrase
bas becn transiated to “sccondary treatment” as a convenient or shorthaud
meins of stating the essence of Guideline 8. The Cowmittees of Coogress indi-
catend that water quility standards shouid bear some relatiouship to the degree
of treatment to be utilized or required. “Water quality standards would provade
an cuzineering base for desizn of treatment works by municipalities and in-
dustries. Such standards svould enable mnunicipalitics and industries to develop
realutic plans for new plants or expanded facilities, without uncertainties about
waste «(disposal requircments on interstace waters.” (Senate Neport No. 10 on
the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendinents of 1965, SUth Congress,
1st Sessiou.)

“Primary” and “secondary” treatmcents arc meaninzful to those in the water
pollution controt field, espccially when applied to municipal wastes. The “Glos.
sary Watcer and Sewage Coutrol Engincering,'* published by the Awerican Soctety
of Civil Epzincers in 1049, prepared Ly a joint cowwittee representine the
Americun Public Health Asyociation, the Americiin Society of Civil Euzineers,
the American Water Works .\ssaciation, and the Federution of Sewuge \Works
Assnciations (pow the Water Pollutinu Control Federition) contains the folluw-
ioz detinitions :

“Preimingry treatment.—(1)The counditioning of an industrial waste at its
source prior to digcharge, to remov? or to peutralize substances injurious to
sewers and treatment processes or to elfect a partiul reduction in loud nn the
trentment process: (2) ln the trcutment proress, unit operations which prepare
the linuor for subsequent major nperations.

“Primary treatment.—The first major (sometimes the ouly) treatment {n a
seware treatment works, usually sedimentation. The removal of a hizh per-
cepiaze of suspended matter but little or no collotdal and ddissolved matrer.

intcrmediate treatment.—The reaioval of a high percentage of suspended
solids aml a substantial percentage of colloidal wmatter, but little dissoived
matter. ,

“Sccondary scwcape treatment.—The treatment of senage by biotogical methods
after primary treatment by seclimentation.

“Complete trcatment.—The removal of a high percentage of suspended, collol-
dal. and dissolved organic matter.'’

The reenmmended atandards for sewage works adopted by the Great Lakes-
Upper Mississippi River Board of State Sanitary Engineers, May 10, 1060
(definitions often referred to ns the “ten-Ktate standurds”) include mwler
primary treatment sereening devices, grit chambers, pre-neration and flocculation,
settlinz tanks and septic tanks. Under secondary treatment is includedd trickling
filters, activated studge, fntermittent sand fltration nwl “other secondury treat-
ment processes.”



Dir. Georze E. Sywons, FEditor of Water and Wastrs Engincering, and a re-
spected conanlting enzineer in the fleld of water pollution conrrel. bas provided
sems leadership in trring to develop new terminolozy in the field of waste water
treatment. In April 1967, be published sutue proposed «detinitions apd invited
profsesionil cominents : the proposed definitions are:

“Pre-treatment.—Apy wastewater treatment process used to partially reduce
pollution load hefore the waste water i3 introduced into 2 main sewer system
or deliverad tn a treatinent plant Jdesigned for a substantial reduction of the
poilition load.

“Primary treatment.—A wastewater treatmeunt plant process employed to re-
mose n substantial portion of gross and settleable or fintable discrete solids.
and «nme portion nf entlnidal matter and the accompanving biochemical oxygen
demand characteristics. and utilizing precipitation. sediwpentution, fiotation, or
anv combination of these processes, with or without the use of cbenicals, air,
or inechanical devices.

“Intermediatc treatment.—A rather lonse term userd tn indicate some combi-
patinn of waste trentment methods that produres a ilezree of treatment between
that obtained by simple solids remnral (sedimentation) and that obrained by
well operared binlogical oxiidation process

“Secondary treatment.—\ wastewater treatment process that emplors hin-
pre~ipitation and oxidation tn reduce the nxvzen demand and pollution lead
aml 2lsn removes azeinmerated particles resnlting from the process.”

The evalutinn nf the terms “primars”’ and *‘secondary’ treatinent cannot be
traced ~sinece they «o nnt appear in any textbook in current use in our vniversities.
fome individnals having been using the terms “primare” and “secondars’’
withun the strict detinition as precented in the “Gloseary,” while nthiers have been
ucinz the teems "“primary” and “secomlary' to indiciute the percentazes of re-
moval which one eould expect in conventional treatment plants.

I1«cently in the United States, treatment requirements are generally ex-
precwl in terms of remaval efficiency, usnally reinted to the treatment ovwer-
ations or processes neceesary to nchieve these percentaces. To {llustrate—the
follcving tahte, whirh pre<ents the relative glliciencies of rewage treatment
operatione amnd proacesses after Fair and Gever, indicates that plain sedimenta-
tinn woulil normally precduce the followinz rewmoval percentages: biochemucal
axrren demand 257 to 4007 and suspendsd <atids 406% to 707 These are the
percertaze reniovals generally anticipatedl when one spenks of primnary treat-
ment. On the other hand, secondary treatment has {requentis heen nsed to desiz-
nate nrocesses with the following removal efficiencies: biochemical axyzen de-
mand SO, tn MG, and saependesd solids TO% tn 959 These latter percentave
removals are normalle nachieved throuzh trickling filtfation or ackvated <linize
trearment, preceded and followed by simple sedimentation,

RELATIVE EFFICIENCIES OF SEWAGE-TREATMENT OPERATIONS AND PROCESSES (AFTEIR FAIR & GEVER)

[Percentage removat|

Treatment operalwr: or process 5-dav20C Susoended  Bactera
800 olds
(a) ) (] (C)]
L o Fine aCrmeming. . .. i e e eieimm—ieeaaaaaan 510 -0 10-20
2 Chioninatinn of raw of seitied sewage. . 15-30 ... .. . 90-9%
3 Pansedwnentaton ... ... . 2540 .70 2375
4 Chemwcal precipststen .. .. . . . U .- . S0 8% 70-%0 an .30
$. Trc'ding tdteralion preceded and foliows 1 by plain sedimentabion ... . . 80 95 M 82 90-95
§. Actwvated siudge tregiment preceded and foliow2d by plain sedwnentation. .. 85 99 $5-46 90 99
7. Intermatent La0d HEIAON .. .i.iiiaeeiiiereneraca e rannas 9093 85-9§ 9%-99
8. Chlerenainn of bulogally treated sowage ... ... ............ S N ”-n

While intending to indicate thesze removal efficiencies, the Federal Water
Pollution Control \dministration has nsed the terms “primmary” and “secondnry”
treatinent roore in a non-specific. generic sense to indicate two levels of treat-
ment pracesses in A progrescion toward more sophisticated waste treatment
technology producing an ever higher quality of discharge into the Nation's
waters than in a specific. precise, scientific sense. The term “tertinrs” is
gencrally used to indicate some treatment process beyond “secondary” not
regarded as conventional during the last decade of national emphasis on polln-
tion control. References to “primars’ aned “secotdary™ treatmment have produced



charges that these are ipdividnal diseharge “eMnent standards” racher than
witer quality standards as contempiated in the Water Quality Act of 1085, We
do not feel these chirges are justiivd. 1n addition to the reference quoted above
relating to “uncertainties usbout waste disposal requircinents on interstate
wiaters,” Senate Report No. 10 also states, “the conupitiee sust reemph.isize ifs
intent that water quality standards are not desiued to ‘lock in’ present uses
of water or to exciude other uses not gow possivie. The standards are noet 2
device to insure the lowest comwon denominator of witer quality but fo enhance
the quality and productivity of onr watcr resonrcves” And agaiu, "The cou-
mirtee intemds the water quality standavds shoold be applied ou the basis of the
witer quality requircments of present and future n3cs of a atream ot section of
stream. after due consideration of all factors and variables involved.” « Ilnphasi-
wddsd) Thus, it appears to us that a higher degres of treaturwent than tiag in
cutumon Use throuzhout the conntry durning the last several decades wrust be
applied if we are to enhance the quulity of vur water reseurces and meet futnre
Usex of 4 stream.

A meaningstut efMuent standard wonld have to ttite an allowable concentration
in vuhmne or tota] quantity of alt impurities which may e dischaeged per unit
of twe, dwonz the typws of impnititivs for which lts icht be specitied inan
etlfuent xtamdard are the Inllowing: suspended solids: settleable and tlotable
solitls; dissolved biotesradable organics, dissolved refractory orginics ; dissolved
inorganie solid<. including nutrienty; biologicil matter, including pathozenic
bacternia: aml temperature. Further, reference might be made. in an cillnent
standard to the following impuritics or effects of impuritics, either orzanic or
invrzanic in origin: color, taste and odors; toxic materials; radioactivity; and
acicdaty aod alkatinity.

Theee are a number of wars in which treatinent requirements or an eflluent
standard can he specified. These inclnde: (1) percentage removal of impurities,

2. 400 reductivn of five-days biochemical oxvzen demund at 20° €; 30%
reduction in acidity: (2) <pecification of an nperation or process, ¢.g., tedimenta-
tion, flatation, neatralization: (3) residual concentration, e.g.. the waste ettluent
xhall contain lexs than 20 mz/1 of suspentded solids. 3 mg/1 of color, pH between
6.5 and 845; {(4) residunal quiantity, eg.. the wiaste cfucnt shall contain no more
than 100 lbs. of biochemical oxygen demand per day, 20 1Us. per day of acidity
av calcimin earbonate : or (35) residual quintity per unit of population or produc-
tinn, e.f., .01 1b..of suspended solidx per person per day, 1 gallon of oil per ton
of industrial product. .1 1h. of crauide per unit of produoction.

In the development of implementation plans, FWIPCA has not required the
States to adopt any one of these types of different standards as they relate to
individual discharges. Inttead, the States have been asked to indicate when the
adopted criteria can be achieved and how they will be achieved. Thus, reference
has usnally been mnade to requiring a winimuw of secondiiry treativent of munic-
ipal waste, anil “the equivalent dezree of trextinent for industrial waste.” The
1atter reference is intended to indiciate that both municipal and industrial waste
discharzers will be required to achieve an equivaleut level of poliution control,
eg.. neither wunicipal nor fndustrinl waste dischargers will be favored or
penalized in achieving higher water guality. Bothh will be nequired as nearly
ax puesible to exert the ~ame level of etffort. We recocnize that the degree
of trentment for finlustrial waste “cquivalent”™ to secondary treatment of munic-
el waste cunnot be cusily determined or defined Iar overy industrial provess
in the United States. We, nevertheless, belicve the reference js relevant in the
contest in which [t appears in the State impltenentation plans.

We de rv -nize that a more precise, widely aceepted, broadly understoed set
of terme x. d be develo~1 and utilized as we perfect our systems of poliution
control. Our staft has be~  concerned about, and ix giving attention tn, this newd.
We shall continue $0 ke s the Comnmittee informed nf nur progress. Meanwhile,
we wil attempt to use such terminolocy as be<t reflects national policy and the
state of the art of waste treatment.



HEARING BEFORE TEE HOUSE COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC WORKS ON
H.R. 15906 AND RELATED BILLS, APRIL 23, 1968

WATER QUALITY STANDARDS

You stated that over half the States standards have been approved.
It is not true that 10 States whose standards were approved by %/ou
have been called back because you have changed your mind as to what
the standards should be in order to meet your approval?

Secretary UDALL. With 10 of the States, these were the first States
that were approved, we have not basically changed the approval; we
have raised on or two new questions ------

Mr. CRAMER. Like what?

Secretary UDALL. With them.

Mr. CRAMER. Like what, for instance?

Secretary UDALL. What actually occurred, Congressman, is that we
went through the process of setting standards. We learned certain
things that we did not know in the beginning. We surfaced certain
problems that we were not aware of and therefore we improved the
standards and we have to go back to the earliest States that we
approved in June last year, some of them, and say that we would like
to have a couple of changes made. But we have not disapproved their
standards, and we have at the present approved 31 States. We have
several others that are nearly ready for approval.

Mr. CRAMER. | appreciated that. However, | would like to know
what some of the changes were.

"NO DEGRADATION POLICY"

Secretary UDALL. Well, the main change, the one that has gotten the
most publicity, was the change with regard to what has been called the
"no degradation policy" and most of the States are accepting this.
Some are arguing with us about it, and we are compromising, working
out compromise language with most of them to incorporate what we
consider sound language to implement the 1965 Act.

Mr. CRAMER. Now does "no degradation of existing water quality"
mean that on a river, although it is adaptable to industrial develop-
ment, for instance, or farming or what-have-you, --surface drainage
is just as much a problem--where that river today is without that in-
dustry or farming, and is a relative clean river, that in the future
this "non-degradation” means that river must remain in the same
quality?

Secretary UDALL. Our interpretation -----

Mr. CRAMER. Therefore that industry could not come in in some
instances?

Secretary UDALL. Our interpretation of the 1965 Act is that the Con-
gress intended it as a water improvement act, as an improvement of
quality, and that the whole concept was that we would be enhancing
the quality as the program moved ahead.



Now, this does not mean no new development and | have had to ex-
plain this laboriously to some of the State people that were concerned
about it. Let's take an average river that has several cities that dis-
charge effluent, some treated, some untreated, and several industries,
some put treated effluent in, some untreated effluent, and the "no-
degradation policy” there would mean, for example, that as your
clean-up program moved forward, and the minute one community or
one industry cleaned up its effluent substantially, the river would be
of higher quality, and the other thing that is enormously helpful is that
most of the new modern plants, industrial plants that are going on,
are installing, because of the water quality standards, very modern
equipment, and therefore the amount of effluent that they put in that
diminishes the quality is rather small as compared with the earlier
plants. Therefore, nondegradation does not mean no new industrial
development. It simply means we have got to keep a clean-up program
going in order to accommodate new industry.

Mr. CRAMER. Is it your philosophy that there are no rivers, that
there are no streams, the use of which by industry is justified to the
extent of some pollution some degradation of the rivers, necessitated
by the nature of the industry?

Secretary UDALL. Some States have deliberately in the water
quality standards set aside some rivers. There are prime trout streams
and your upland streams, and they have been set aside to not be used
for certain purposes and not to be polluted in any way, and | think this
is a very good policy.

Mr. CRAMER. | asked you the reverse question, however. Are there
streams in which you would approve some degradation because of
their particular applicability for industrial development and so forth?

Well, let me give you an example--in other words, you cannot have
clean waters on every river where you have industry no matter what
cleanup effort they make. Industry in some forms by its nature has to
cause some degree of pollution.

When you say "no degradation,” that would seem to me to limit the
use of the shoreland by the control of standards in that manner.

congressman, there are two answers. | tried to give you the one
a moment ago, with regard to how we feel this will actually work.
And as the cleanup program moves forward, there is room to accom-
modate additional uses--additional industrial uses, let us say, or addi-
tional municipal loads, and still have what will probably be a cleaner
river.

Then we have other situations. Let us take the State of Alaska,
which is largely underdeveloped. They have many large rivers there
where there is no industry, no community, no pollution at all. They
came to me and said, "Well, what does this policy mean? That we
can't have cities? We can't locate industry?" We do have an exception
clause that we have written into the antidegradation provision that
opens the door to exceptional circumstances, with the burden, of
course, on the State or on the industry to show that such circum-
stances_do exist. o ] )

Mr. CRAMER. Well, I do not want to belabor it interminably, but if,
in fact, the hearing record establishes that the maximum value and use
of the stream can be achieved by water quality standards somewhat
below existing levels, then do you think that you, under the present
law, have authority to arbitrarily, despite that hearing record, refuse
to give effect to such standards?

Secretary UDALL. In effectuating the "no degradation" policy, we
had to attempt to interpret the meaning of the 1965 act. | know there
are those who disagree with us, and | saw a letter from the U.S. Cham-
ber of Commerce yesterday on this, the legal opinion that they have
gotten that disagrees with us, but it is our view that the "no degrada-
tion" policy effectively asserts the policy that Congress itself wrote
into the 1965 act, This was contemplated as a water enhancement law.
The whole tenor of the 1965 act, if you look at it, was one of water im-
provement, water enhancement, raising the quality rather than low-
ering it.
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I think we can da that. T da not thiuk this is going to inhibit new
industry. It is goine to mean that new industry is going to have to
put in very good pollution control equipment. It is goiny to mean that
we are going to have to zet the cleannp program going. I think, if
we o that, that in these industrialized areas, and along the sections
of ~treams and tributaries where there will always be some effluents
and some pollution, we ecan still have na degradation in effect, and
have increased nses of these waters.

My, Craymrr. Well, mavhe the ehoice of terminology is nat too good,
when von say “nondegradation,” and in the next hreath youn say “We
are woing to make some exceptions like Alaska.™

Similarly, confusion is created in the case of the sugmestion I had
relating to new streams that have nat been developed industrially. or
asrienlturally, where von are #oing to have surface drainaPe in agri-
culrnre. You are aoing to have same polintion in indnstr.\' no matter
how much thev are zoing to try to clean it up. I do not think you will
ever find a pulpmill that is not @otug to have a little hit of pollution.

Secretary Upsrr. That is true, there is aning to be some eflluent.

M. Cradter. Dovs that mean by these standards these new areas are
not ening to be opened and developed, because the result wonld be
somedegradation of that stream?

Secretary Ubari. No. We don't interpret it that way at all. And I
believe that this policy can be effectuated and that we can achieve what
I think Congaress wanted without seriously inhibiting the industrial
growth of the country. I just do not thinlk that this is going to be the
effret,

Mr. Crader. And the standards that have been set are that you as
Secretary conld make exceptions?

Secretary Ubats.. We do have authority to make exceptions where
there are hardships or special social or economic reasons.

My, Crayrr. The State does not have sucl authority ¢

Seeretary Upart. We write this kind of language into the State
standards. The States will administer them, and we will have to get
back into the picture only if we disagree with the way that the State
is enforcing the standards. That is the reason we want——

Mr. CrayEer. Why do vou not. permit the States to having a State
agency make those exceptions under certain standards, rather than
you, as Secretury, juduing every single case !

Secretary Upacrr. Well, [ would expect only very exceptional cases
to actually get to me, or even get to Washington.

Mr. Cramer. T do not want to-see the Secretary of Interior or any
Federal agency saying to every industry that “You either can or can-
not locate” or that any new farm can be established or not established
alaug a given stream. I do not want to see this as strictly the Secretary’s
power. That is what hothers me.

Sccretary Upars. Congressman——

Mvr. Crasten. I do not think we intended that in the 1966 act.

Secretary Uparr. I do not think we are setting up that kind of ad-
ministration. And T would predict that in 99 out af 100 cases the State
people merely will be touching hase with our people, amd that the local
or regional level will make mast of the decisions on these matters.
And we will be brought in only when there is a loud ontery, usuall
from sportsinen and conservationists, that there is a (lngrant example
of degradation of a stream ov river, aud that the water quality stand-
ards are not being kept. So we don’t want to @o in the business of
running this program from Washington. We think Congress contem-
plated that if the States would fix smitable standards, the States would
do mast of the administering and the enforcing, and we wounld get in
only if they did not do their job right.
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Mr. Crarier. Well. even if the henring vecord clearly shows thar yon
cannnt have this industry X on this river withant some desradation,
but that this river can be uced and should he used for agricultural
purposes. or far industrial purposes. that Seate dees nat have the ower
to say “Yes.” hecause that is an exceprion to the standards. Only yon
have that power.

Secretary Uparr. No. Pecanze we end up with a “na degeadation”™
section in the State standard= thuat we are agreed upon. Now they will
administer their own standards. We will ger inta the picture only if
their administration breaks down.

Mr. Craver. When somebady objects to how they are doing it?

Secretary Upawr. That is righr.

Mr. Craner. So yan have the Knal sav?

Seeretary Unars. We get inta the big tight, as we nsually Jo—when
there is a big fizht between the sportsmen :md chambers of commmerce
over location of a new factory that is zoing ta ruin the fishing <ome-
where. That is when we are zoing to be in the picture. Only then—
usually only then.



HEARING BEFORE THE HOUSE COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC WORKS ON
H.R. 15906 AND RELATED BILLS, MAY 2, 1968

* * * *

SECONDARY TRFEATMENT REQUIREMENT

Mr. McEweNs. Mr. Sceretary, have you required secondary treat-
ment in all cases?

Secretary Unace. We are urzing the States to commit themselves
to secondary treatment of municipal wastes in most caszes. In our basic
otideiines, specifically anideline No. § we stated, “Further. no stand-
ard will be approved which does not require all wastes, prior to dis-
charge into any interstate water, to recetve the best practicable treat-
ment or control unless it can be demonstrated that a leszer degree of
treatment or eontrol will provide for water quality enhancement com-
mensurate with proposed present and future water uses.” Int practice
this guideline u-nally means but not always, secondary treatment of
innicipal wastes, But icis important to remember that the guidelines
sieaested certain actions, they did not require them.

Mr. McEwerx. As 1 understand it, we have had streams where
classification has been such that quality of that water could be made
clean withont the secondary treatment required at this time.

What I ask you naw is under what provision of law do you require
secondary treatment if the water quality standards do not require it?

Secretary Uparr. While we do not require secondary treatment, it
15 obvious that the Water Quality Act of 1965 called for upgrading of
water quality. which requires a gond degree of waste treatment in
order to be achieved. Additionally, the act clearly ealled for plans of
implement: tion to achicve the desiznated levels of water quality, We
at the Federal level have the responsibility to assure that the plans
developed by the States for implementing standards are etfective and
reasonable. The term “sccondary treatment”™ seems in many cases to
tdentify the kind of treatment which will best mect water quality
standards with respect to municipal wastes. The term has little or no
application as far as industrial wastes are concerned.

There may be some special situations—again, we have tried not to
be categorical and inflexible—where exceptions are necessary. We
sit. down and discuss these particular situations if they do exist.

But gene-ally the States have agreed with us with regard to the
rca}uiremem. ¢ 2 secondary treatiment.

think most of your water pollution control people in the country
at lurge realize that this is very basic if we are moing to have a mean-
ingful water pollution control program in the country.

Mr. Craster. Will the gentleman yield on that point?

Mr. McEwrN. Yes.

* * * *

‘N0 DFCRADATION POLICY

Mr. Craxrs. Now, this no degradation approach, in which the pres-
ent quality of the water is a condition of approval, were the States
consulted relating to that prior to the decision, at the time the decision
was inade



NODEGRADATION LANGUAGE AVAILABLE

Secretary UpatL. This was an issue that was raised in our gnide-
lines that we put out 2 years ago in terms of what was intended. And
we have had to not only notify the States; we have had to have esten-
sive discussions with all of the States on umplementing this. And
again we do not have any stock boilerplate lancuage. We work with
each State in trying to get a piece of language that they can put in
their standards that will, we believe, satisfy the act and then be work-
ahle in terms of whatever problems they have.

In other words, we have not said to them that here is language, this
has to be in your standards. We have said that we think that a certain
obhjective is required by the act, and we want to achieve it, and we want
a progvam that will be practical and feasible. _

Now. let us sit down and negotiate a general provision in the stand-
ards which will cover this particular question.

Thisisthe approach we have used.

Mr. Cramun. I understand that. JTowever, that is not responsive to
my question relating to the fact that you made a major change, as I
construe it, relating to this question of nondegradation. I do not think
thiere is a question hut that that is a major change, without following
the procedures of the act or, in the alternative, conferring with the
States relating to that nes major requirement.

Seeretary Unare. Well, I do not regard it—some of them may re-
ard it as a new major requirement. Ithink it was implicit in the act
as it was enacted initially. We advised them of it in our initial guide-
lines, and it was merely a matter of construing, not a matter of pro-
po-ing, something new. It was a matter of how we construed the basic
tenor of the act. and how we implemented it.

Mr. Craxenr. Can vou indicate where in the initial guidelines that
was centemplated ? You have it before you theve, I betieve. I hiave read
them, and I do not sce it.

GUIDLLINE NO. 1 CONTAINS ESSENCE OF NO DIGRADATION POLICY

_ Seerctary Upatl. T think the essence of it is in the very first guide-
line, policy guideline, water policy standards should be designed to
cnhance the quality of water. '

Tln')s is where we got to the real guts of the question. What does thac
mean ?

This was the philosophy that was implicit in the 1965 aet, that this
wWis an act to inprove water. It i1s not to degrade water. This is the
very lirst guidceline we luid down. It is where we began.

FUTUERE J.OCATION BY INDUSTRY ON RELATIVELY CLEAN STREAMS

. Mr. Craver. That implies that any stream that is not presently be-
ing uzed for industrial purposes cannot so be used in the future if that
wre In any way changes the present condition of the water in any
way or to any degree, if it has any degradation whatsoever, even
though it means that industry could not locate there, and even though
A State might use it to set aside certain streams for that specilic pur-
IM=c of industrial development.

Secretary Upnace. Well, Congressman, we have not taken that kind
of rigrid view. I do not think you can. And I discussed Alaska as an

example, which is largely an undevcloped State in terms of its
resources.
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Weliaveleft the door open tothe consideration of any proposals.

On the other hand, I think in most States you are going to find that
these peime unpolluted streams are usually vour best trout fshine
streams, and other streams, and that they are going to protect them.

Mr. Craner. T understand that.

Secretary Upave. They are not going to want industry to get on
them.atleast I do net. )

Mr. Cramer. Isitnot true in any instance where the State of Alaska,
or any other State, wishes to place industry on a river and there is the
prospect of some degree of degradation, that it requires approval by
vouindividually asa Secretary and not by the State ? i

Secretary Upatt. It would require approval—

Mr. Crasrer, Inaddition to the States.

Secretary Upart. It would require joint approval, let us put it that
wav,

Mr. Crmavez. So,inetfect, we are wetting right aroand to what many
n]f ns had grave concerns about when this was establishied in the first
piace.

And that was that we would end up with the Secretary in effect
beinz able to revoke or not approve or override a State decision to,
for instance, locate a plant, even thouzh there was substantial sewaee
treatment facilities provided which there would be. on a river which
would have the effect of anv degradation whatsoever: and 1
cannot imagine a plant that would not have some, particularly now
when you are going into thermal heating. If the water comes out of a
powerplant heated, that is considered to be degradation. I think that
1s pending now in Miami, Dade County, where the local authorities
approved the project.

The local pollution authorities approved the project, but it has—
and also in Orlando—it does heat the water. Although there is re-
quirement not to heat it above a certain degree. And the Federal Gov-
ernment has said, no, we will not let you build that plant, because
there isa thermal degradation.

REASONABLE DETERMINATION OF WATKFR USE A STATE PREROGATIVE

Novw, it seems to me that somewhere—and I certainly contemplated
when we worked on the Clean Water Act in 1965 that standards wonld
be cet, that the States would have the jurizdiction to determine
within reason where a stream should be used for industrial purposes,
the nature of that, and under those guidelines. without having to come
to the Secretary on every approval for every plant.

Secretary Upart. Well, they are not usuallv aning to have to come
to the Sccretary for approval on plants. There may be a few rare
cases that will get to my desk. I think the situation that has developad
is that as far as most of vour State wa.  pollution control agencies
are concerned, they have the same kind of expertise,the same kind of
people working as we have in the Federal agencyv. Most of the<e
matters are going to be worked out at the Jocal level. The States are
going to have the main responsibility once their standards are
approved.

I would predict there are going to be far fewer of these trouble-
some exceptional cases that we are talking about here than anyvone
realizes: because I do not think that swwe have a great ditfference between
w];:!t the States want to do and what the Federal Government wants to
achieve.
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Mr. Cranmer. T just want to sav to vou as one of those who worked
hard on that levislation and assisted in eetting unanimens support
for it. I appealed to my colleazucs on the floor of the Ilouse on the
basis that these standrds would be set and fixed pursuant to the act,
and for certain streams it would be nhvious that it would be needed
for industrial purpo<es and that the States, under those standards,
wonld have the final say-so relating to the location of those plants,

Nouw, it appears. however, that it now takes approval of the Federal
Government, and the Federal Government is assuming by that means
the responsibility relating to land use, zoning, in effect, on all inter-
state streams in this country.

FEDFRAL INVOLVEMENT IN STANDARDS IMPLEMENTATION EXPECTED ONLY
IN TNTSAL SITUCATIONS

Sceretary Upatt. Congressman. I ean only say, in termeof how we
are actually functioning and how the implementation of the act is
going to work out, that some of the fears that some have, that the

Federal Government is staving in the picture too much and that we are
going to make the basic decisions, that this is not the way that the
prozran is working out in fact.

1f we approve the State standards and——

Mr. Cramen. Including nondegradation.

Secretary UbaLr. .An get nondegradation language with them, the
only time, [:robabl.v, that e are going to be called into the picture
is when a big arguinent develops within a State, and it is usually
going to be the sportsinen and tle conservation interests against
mdustry. Let us be fiank about it. When the armunent develops,
if this involves the nondegradation issue, we may be brought into
it. But we are nnt sitting looking over the shoulders of the States.
Tliose standards have Leen approved. We do not want to, and we
expect to get in only in those rare cases where there 4s argnment,
whether the State is observing its standards, whether it is enforcing
its standards.

It is really up to the States to be vigorous about it.

Mr. Cradtrr. You are actually in it, That is all T have.

MEANING OF ¥XNO DEGRADATION POLICY

Mr. McEwex. I do not have a transeript of your testimony before
the committes in the other body. but [ huve a copy of Conservation
News, April 15, in which they say, referring to you, Mr. Secretary:

He sald he reeolved this istue by requiring that standamis shall include a
provision to assure that present water quality will npot be degraded.

I quote further from this:

We are asking, Mr. Udall =aid, that a paragraph be incinded in enforcible
standards, substantiafly in accord with the following:

Then it quotes, I assume from the standard, Mr. Secretary, and I
would liko to know if this is correet.:

Water whase existing quality is better than the established standard as of the
date on which such standardy becqine effective will be maintained at their
exi~ting high quality. ‘These and other waters of your Stute will not be fowered in
quality nnless and until it bas been allirmatively demonsmted to the State
water pollutiva control agency aud the Department of Interior that such change
is Justifiable as a result of necessary economic or social d2velopment ind wildl
not interfere with or becotne injuricuy to any assigned uses made of, or
pruesently possible in, such waterx.



Is that correct?

Secretary Uparr. This is the water quality degradation statement,
the policy statement that we issued,

Mre MeEwrex, Isit not fair to assume that you are going to be under
that policy in the middle nf every controversy in every one of the 50
States where the Isaak Walton League or the local fish and game club,
ov whoever it may be. feels that a plant is going to, as it would of
neces=1tv. I would think, somewhat downerade the qnality of the warer,
even though it would not aflect the standard that had been set on that
water?

TIHE WATER QUALITY ACT NOT A DEGRADATION ACT

Sceretary Unarr. Your State concervatinn acencies these days are
just as sengitive to the Isaak Whalton Leacue as I am. They are going
te hear front them. And T think mo-t of these izsues are zoing to he
fonuzit out and resolved at the State level: but this is the real basic
question we faced. and we might as well be frank about it. and that is
why this statement veads as it dees. and, as you can sce, we left the
door open for exceptions: but did the Congress in 1965 write an act
whereby standards would be set, which, in eflect, invite the degradation
of waters down to some (luor, or dild the Corgress write an act which
contemplated that the waters of this Nation were going to be im-
proved’

This was the bazic question.

And if come Members of Congress think that the act was a water
dewradation act, I do not interpret it that waw, and I may be wrong.
And the Congress can revise it if they want to, but that was the
view that we took, that it was a water enhancement, an enhancement
of quality act. and that therefore the standards should not be used
toinvite degradation.

STANDARDS AND INDUSTRIAL GROWTII

Mr. McEwr~. Mr. Secretary, as one who sat on this committee and
supported this bill both here and on the floor, and #s a New Yorker
who is proud of the program that we have in New York State fov
cleaning up our streams and hmproving our water, I certainly never
anticipated that the location of an industry would be a matter not
ouly of State review but approval by the Secretary of Intertor.

May I sax, if I can be parochial, in my own congressional district we
are proud of some of the trout waters that exist in Jhe State of New
York or anywhere clse in this caze. And we wunt these for recreation
arcas: but we also, on the last eount T made. they have almost one score
of papermills that are furnishing all manners of paper products to a
consuming public that wants thein. . .

We never anticipated, with the paper industry and other induziries,
that they could not have futnre growth, futnre development in that
arca as long as they did not destroy the quality of the water, as it had
been set following public hearings,

T am frankly, My, Secretary, shocked when T read that it is contem-
plited, and T quote again from this appavent standard, that water
will not he lowered in quality—let me say, Mr, Seeretary, and T said
when the gentleman from Towa =aild he read your book. 1. sir. not
only read it T Lought it

But T am concerned. as you are, and T think all of onr people are,
in natintaining the waters of Nerica, Bar T rhink we all recognize, or
at least we <honld, that this afiluent socicty is eflnence, can’t elinunate
all the efluent= if we are woing 1o lave the products of industry, We
want industry, we want the jobs, and we want the products that they
provide.
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In onr ewn State we have satd what we have believed, T an gmng to
a-X now. have you approved the New York Stare standavds? B}

Reeretary Inans. Yes, We have given general approval to the New
Yerk stundands,

%50 DEGRADATION" PCOLICY WOULD NOT PELCLUDE NEW INDUSTRY

Conzressman. vou raized the real crueial question. and this is very
good dialeg. T know people are listening who should be listening.

And T want to make a starement to you on this. Becanse the idea has
gotten out that the nondegradation policy means no new industry. And
this is ridiculous. It has no such ettect.

Let me met very specitic. The State of New York is a gond place
to met very specific. because there are many cities on the Hudson River,
ou the Mohawk and tributaries, for example. that pour untieated sew-
age into the IIndson River. And the purpose of this act. of collrse, is
to have the inunicipalities and the industries clean up their efiluents.

Now, if you take one of the cities. and 1 will not mention names, on
the ITudson River, which is providing no ticatment whatsoever, it is
pouring mw sewage in, ancd it puis in even a primary treatment
plant, vou have upgraded the quality of the river, have you not, by
that one act you have upgraded the quality; and by upgrading the

uality without any degradation what~oever you have opened the
door to additional industry right there,

As industry acts, and industry is acting—look in Business Week
magazine this week, they are really moving, and I am proud of industry
for their investments and their emotion on this. But as this program
cets underway, we are oing to be improving water, and the door is
wide open to new industry, because most of the new industry that is
coninz in is going to be required by the States—I will not have to
require it—to put m the be<t and most modern water pollution controi
cquipment. and their pollution will be very minimal,

In other words, one of these cities on the Hud<on will open the door
to a lot of industry, once you clean it up. So that I think the degrada-
tion issue or nondegradation issue is being used today as a bugaboo by
some of my friends. I do not think it is going to have that effect. T do
not think it is goine te operate that way,

Mr. McEwex, May I suerest. Mr. Seeretary, that it is certainly
time now that this be clarified. becaunse certainly this is not under-
stoodd. Do you say to take the Hudson River. it is a good example of a
strean they sorely abuse. If the comnmunity along there, wirh their
zewage treatment plants sort of unburdened this stream of handling
that waste, then it opens up for new industry to come in and use the
stream for disposal of its waste.

I do not think it is understood at all, sir.

ASSTRANCE CONCERNING STANDARDS NEEDED

Coming back to the approval, I still feel, possibly it is the old saying,
that the Lest is the encmy of the goad, and inayvbe we should settle for
what is good and not necessarily the best.

I thiuk it is terribly important, Mr. Seeretary, that communities and
industries be able to rely on standards that hiave been set folluwing
public hearings. I have Leen told that in some communities and indus-
tries, in my own area, I have now been told after they have set stand-
ards, that now they have got to put in secondary treatment, although
it was not required to maintain the quality of the water,

This of course Jeads to the understandable apprehension that action
such as this having been tuken, the antidegredation policy simply
means that no one can locate an industry in a community that is dis-
charging anything into those waters if it will in any way downgrade
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the quality of the water, even though the water is still acceptable for
its cluassitied use.

Our whole prozram in New York Stace was based on a classification
of streams from the trout waters to the stream that would not be suit-
able for fishing, for recreation. but for industry use.

I sugerest, Mr. Secretary, that this is something that very mucl needs
clartication.

I will yield to the gentletmun from New Iumpshire.

COST OF CLEAN WATER

Mr. Crevreano. I think this dialog is interesting, too, Mr. Secre-
tary. One of the problems that I have noticed durinz yvour remarks,
when vou eame before us last week, was vou outlined the several major
tets that we passed in the lust couple of years, and it seeinsto me every
titne we pass one of these acts, evervone zets the impression, whether
erroneously or not, but they seem to get the impression that, “Boy.
this has done it.” “Now we are going to have clean waters™, and it is
all done. ’

In this connection I think it would Le helpful if somewhere along
tho line somebody put into the record. cither now or later on in these
hearings, just what the estimated total cost of accomplishing our stated
objectives is going to be. I reinember when we had our hearings 2 years
ago that we were talking about Lake Lrie, and of coursze the estunate
of what it is gning 10 cost to clean up Lake Erie ran all over the place,
somcbody said $5 billion and somebody $20 billion; and they were
not hard ficures.

Mr. Secretary, do you have an estimate of what it will cost nation-
wido to accomplish our stated objectives ?

Is that figure available? I think it would be a startling figure, but at
least it would put this thing in perspective.

Secretary Unavt. Our ast stm{y in terms of the present contem-
plated standards and programs is $3 billion for municipal action—I
am not talking about the storm drainage problem—and for industry,
£2.6to S4.6 billion.

Mr. CreveLaso, Thisis just a beginning. isit not?

Secretary Upars. OFf course it is just n beginning, because this is
really the backlog problem, and installation for expunsion of cities and
for new industries, of installation of new cquipment which industry is
moving toward already, and so are the cities. But I think this is a
very useful discussion.

INTENT OF WATLR QUALITY ACT TO UIPGRADE—NOT DOWNGIADE—
NATION'S STREAMS

Mr. McCarrny. Mr. Secretary, I voted for this, and participated in
its shaping, and I certainly, for my part, did not anticipate that this
was going to provide for the degradation of streaims that wero pristine.
Wo were trying to upgrade and not downgrade, and if the impression
gets abroad that we are going to backtrack now and permit industry,
facing the installation of expensive equipment, go up to some trout
stream and locate there, then we are going to be just going backward.

And I read that Business Wecek story, too, and I am very impressed
with what industry is doing. I think, for one reason, they feel that this



committeo and the Federal Government and the States are serious
about this, and they are not going to permit the degradation of
streams.

Now, if we go buck a step. as I think this whole approach is, that we
are going to retire everything. And I think implicit in the philosophy
of this whole approach is that we are not going to stand by and let
every trout stream be located into a millstream. I do not think it is
vice versa, and I think that somebody who feels that way should state
that view.

I think Mr. Waldie hasa comment.

**NO DEGRADATION™ DOLS NOT MEAN CLEANTP OF A CITY'S POLLTTION SO
THAT INDUSTRY JMAY POLLUTE

Mr. Warote. Mr. Secretary, I was a little bit concerned Svith your
answer of your present policy on degradation. I happen to support it
as it was announced, but I gathered, in your colloquy with a member
of the committee, that vou have established a principle that if the
I{udson River is using, for purposes of this analogy, percentagewise,
100 percent polluted now, and you stop a city duinping in 10 percent
of that 100 percent, that you open up that stream for 10 percent more
pollution from industry. ) )

I gathered, what you are saving, that if you stopped raw sewage
from flowing into the ITudson from a city, you have tiereby cleaned
the ~strenin up, say, 10 percent, so you can now permit industry to locate
and pollute the stream that 10 percent that you cleared up by pre-
venting the city from polluting it.

I hope that 1s not the policy, and I hope I misunderstood you.

It scems to me you are not accomplishing anything, except you are
substituting for raw sewage industrial pollution. If your policy of
preventing degradation of the waters has any meaning, it would seem
to me that you do not, by preventing one polluter to open up the
ballzaune for another polluter to take his position.

Sccretary Upavr. Congressmap, I was explaining what is in effect
the floor problem as far as the water pollution cleanup is concerned.
Let me give you the whole picture.

And the point I was trving to make to Congressman McEwen is
that most of our rivers and lakes in this country today are badly
polluted. If we mount the type of vigorous program that some of the
States are getting ready to do, and that we can do with the legislation
pending before this commniittee, what we are going to see is a significant
cleanup in terms of the quality of water in this country.

I}« this is going to happen. This is the purpose of the whole
rca. . Wear: »oing to significantly improve the quality of waters.
Ve are going to «..an up estuaries.

The cleanup in all cases will not be 100 percent, because we do not
have that good of technology at this point. But it will be a very signifi-
caut clennup,

Asa resurt, this policy that we had to decide, with regard to dezrada-
tion and what the floor is, was this. Were we to interpret this act and
to approve standards that would actually give people a license to
degrade the waters in any particular areas? We did not think the
Congress intended so.



"This is the way we interpreted it.

The point I was tryving ro wake to Cougressman McEwen is this,
Nome of industry hove said: ~Well, what vou are saying is that there
will be no new tadustry on the Iud:on River. no new industry on
this estuarv. or on that lake at all.” .\nd this is not the etfect of it.
Lecause most new indnstries that come on the line today are going to
be required by the States, they are soing to be required by the-e
stanchards, to nsze the very best and most modern equipment availabie,
and this weans that the eflluent which gets haek into a river or lake
from the=e new indu~tries is going to be very sinall as compared with
the tvpe of raw eflluents that have been pouring in.

The recult is that under this program you can have new industry,
and vou are still zoing to have a picture of water quality beine
sienificantly impioved, so that there is no caltision Letween the two
if we earry out vour programs in the right wav., And R is not an
either-ar sitnation. It is a matter of doing our job, of meeting the typw
of standards that we are talking about and of seeing a very significant
and engoing improvement of the water quality in this conntry.,

Mr. McCareny. Idoaot think the public is going to stand by while
we trv to npgrade these streams, while over hierve they ave downgrading
these [indicating].

FEDERAL-STATE COOPERATION IN ESTARBLISIIMENT OF WATER QUALITY
SBTANDARDS IN CALIFORNIA

Me. Warnie, May Taleoadd, My, Seceretary, that in terms of at Jeast
the State of California, the extablishment of the water quality stand-
ards under the act has proceeded precisely as yon have outlined, and
in addition when aveas in California have had disagreement with the
standards established by the State—aud T represent one such aren—
the flexibility that you have indicated as desirablle in ternys of arviving
at o deciston was provided our area. And ve were permitted the oppor-
tunity to present to your Department in great detail our objections
to the proposal, and I would say at least in terms of California that
the act in establishing these water quality standards has been impie-
mented by your Department to the satisfaction of everyone in the
State, althongeh the decisions may not be satisfactory, but the oppor-
tunity to effect amd to persuade has bwen afforded us in full degree.

Secretary Unar, Congressinan Waldie has in his district one of
the most serious problems in the whole State of California, It is the
tvpe of problem, however. that we do not have all the answers to. We
have not develaped a ~olution. We conld not decide this. And therefore
when it came to this problem we did not approve it or disapprove it.
We said let us continne to work with it, and we will try to work out a
solution. and then we will deride. )

I think this is the only rational commonsense approach for it.

Mr. Warpir. 1 think so too, and I wanted it for the record.



EXCERPTS OF REMARKS BY SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR STEWART ..
UDALL TO THE 24TH WHITE HOUSE CONFERENCE OF THE ADVERTISING

COUNCIL, WASHINGTON, D.C., MAY 7, 1968

I will predict that during the next several months you
will be hearing and reading much about a new addition to the
vocabulary of concerned Americans. That word+is degradation.

In my lexicon degradation is the slow, insidious erosion
of this Nation's great natural resources.

It means their ultimate destruction.

In the Interior Department, degradation these days refers
to the threatened deterioration of our priceless water treasures.
It refers to a recently announced policy of mine which very
simply says that we will no longer permit the gquality of a
clean stream to be lowered, except where it is socially and
economically justified and that the lowering——or degradation--
will not interfere with presently existing uses of those waters.

There are some who are rising up to oppose this policy.
This is unfortunate. 1If the opposition gathers enough
momentum, it could set the big water clean up back twenty years.
And that would be tragic. Much of the reason for the opposition.
ls a misplaced fear that we are retarding economic growth by
insisting on cleaner water.

That is simply not true. Le. me be absolutely clear about
The non-degradation policy--as it has come to be called--

Teans increasing the value of clean water by preventing pollu-

tion. At the same time it provides the States with a margin

-Or further social and economic development. Some of the

:ta;es and some industries are saying it's an economic and
Social roadblock.

this,

g Just the opposite is true. The policy will help assure
a;er supply for further social and economic development.
~nd by asking for the best treatment methods for polluted

‘i:zrs we enhance the quality of the water and therefore its
[} e.



I believe in the non-degradation policy. It is econo-
mically and socially sound. It is positive in its approach.
It is based on the premise that clean water is an economic
and social necessity. It now needs the support of industry.
t needs the support of the States, and the cities. It needs
the support of people in advertising and the related profess:cns.
In short, we need your help and we would welcome your advice.
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REMARKS BY MAX N. EDWARDS, ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR
FOR WATER POLLUTION CONTROL, BEFORE THE FONTANA CONSERVATION
ROUNDUP, FONTANA DAM, NORTH CAROLINA, MAY 17, 1968

Interpreting the language of the statute (PL 89-234
Water Quality Act of 1965) set off a controversy among all
water users which was resolved on February B, 1968, by
Secretary Udall's "nondegradation" statement. It was so
named because (following approval of some of the initial
standards in 1967) some of the mindful conservationists in
this very audience vigorously protested that the Department
was approving standards which permitted a lowering or degra-
dation of existing water quality. Our critics were guick to
remind us that we were ignoring the Congressional mandate
to "enhance the quality of water."

* * * *

...When it can be shown that nececsary economic or social de-
velopment justifies a reduction of water quafity and that
such reduction will not interfere with existing uses, a
lowering of water quality will be permitted (if the new in-
dustry is willing to install the best practicable means of
treatment to minimize its abuse of such high quality water).

Most segments of society have accepted the standards
approcach as a logical battle plan to attack one of the most
critical domestic problems facing this coynr‘ry. Almost every
state is to be congratulated for a genuine 'spirit of cooper-
ation and a keen sense of purpose to accomplish the task at
hand. 1Industry, too, should be lauded for seeking to upgrade
its treatment technology to meet water quality standards.

And for the most part business is moving forward willingly.
As an example of a healthy attitude toward clean water, I am
told that capital spending for the control of both air and
water pollution by the business community will show a marked
increase in 1968, Estimates given me show the chemical
industry spending 42% more for water pollution control this
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year than in 1967, For the same purpose textiles will in-
crease its funding 136%, the mining industry-51%, electric
and gas utilities 32% and fabricated metals and instrument
makers will be up 649%.

In administering the Water Quality Act we are of course
not without our critics. Some have accused the Department of
usurping the states' authority and others complain that we
have formulated national water quality standards.

This is not true. We have been continually aware that
the primary responsibility for establishing these standards
rests with the states. Our policies, consistent with both the
language and the spirit of the Congressional mandate, are
designed to protect this principal responsibility. I want to
make i1t perfectly clear that the standards are not identical.
The wide variety of differences in the standards is reflected
in the many designated uses of water, the nature of the water
resource, climate, population, industrial activity and a host
of other variables. Nc national standard is intended and
when the states adopt standards of their own which meet the
terms of the Act they are approved.



REMARKS BY JOE G. MOORE, JR., COMMISSIONER, FEDERAL WATER
POLLUTION CONTROL ADMINISTRATION, BEFORE THE 3RD ANNUAL
COLORADO WATER RESOURCES CONFERENCE, COLORADO STATE
UNIVERSITY, FORT COLLINS, COLORADO, JUNE 19, 1968

I do not believe that the non-degradation policy an-
nounced earlier this year by Secretary Udall should be or
can be reversed or ignored. My reason: The policy stands
for clean water; it bars degradation of clean water, and
American public opinion generally supports this concept.
It is as simple as that.

You will agree, I know, that the success of the national
water pollution control effort is dependent on cooperation
between the States and the Federal Government, on productive
Federal-State relations.

You will also agree, I think, that productive Federal-
State relations in water pollution control and related as-
pects of water quality management are dependent on substan-

tial agreement as to both objectives and means for achieving
them,

There is substantial agreement between the States and
the Federal Government on water pollution control objectives,
growing out of the overwhelming desire of the American
people for an abundant supply of clean water for present and
future uses.

This, then, brings us to the question of specific steps,
the means to get where we all want to go. This, after all,
is the ultimate test of our effectiveness. And here, too,

I believe the States and the Federal Government are much
closer together than some of the things that have been said
about the Department's non-degradation policy might lead
One to think.
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I think everyone is agreed on two basic points. The
first is that dirty water should be made as clean as possible
as rapidly as possible. The second is that clean water shoulz
be kept as clean as possible. I think that's what the people
want. I believe that's what the States want. I know that's

<
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deral Government wants.

All right, how do we accomplish these two objectives?
The only way I know it can be done is to reduce, control, and
orevent pollution. In the case of already polluted waters,
it means moving up as fast as we can to the b®st practicable
levels of treatment -- all up and down the river, all arouna
the lake. In the case of a new urban development or a new
industry on a high-quality lake or stream, it means starting
with the best practicable levels of treatment.

This is what the water quality standards program is
all about. And this is what the non-degradation policy is
all about.

To the best of my knowledge there is no fundamental
disagreement with the non-degradation principle. What many
of the States are objecting to is the implication, as they
see it, that any new development involving a discharge into
high-quality water will require concurrent approval of both
the State water pollution control agency and the Department
of the Interior. The charge has been made that this would,
in effect, make the Department of the Interior a licensing
agency for any new urban or industrial development on inter-
state waters whose quality is better than the applicable
standards required for those waters.

This simply would not be the case. It is our intent
that the States will be the licensing agencies when it comes
to new developments on high-quality interstate waters.

The non-degradation policy is not intended to place
economic development in irons. But it is intended to prevent
any repetition of the gross debasement of our water resources
which this country has witnessed in this century. It will
help assure water supplies of adequate quality for further
SOc1al and economic development.
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Secretary Udall told the House Committee on Public
Works on April 23:

"I do not think this (the non-degradation policy) is
gcing to inhibit new industry. It is going to mean that
new industry is going to have to put in very good pollution
control equipment. I think, if we do that, that in these
industrialized areas, and along the sections of streams and
tributaries where there will always be some effluents and
scme pollution, we can still have non-degradation in effect,
and have increased uses of these waters."

Certainly, a strong non-degradation policy is critically
essential to the success of our national water pollution
control program. Without this concept we would be on a
treadmill. Making little headway. Cleaning up dirty water
while clean water gets dirty.
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REMARKS BY MAX N. EDWARDS, ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR
FOR WATER POLLUTION CONTROL, AT THE 153RD MEETING OF THE
MISSOURI BASIN INTER-AGENCY COMMITTEE, JACKSON LAKE LODGE,
GRAND TETON NATIONAL PARK, WYOMING, JUNE 27, 1968

The "Anti-Decradation" Standard

As I indicated earlier, I wanted to save my remarks
on the "anti-degradation"” issue until last. It is the one
subject of greatest concern to us at the moment because it
is the one subject most seriously misunderstood. The one
basic question before the house is: "Do we devote our
collective energy to cleaning up our polluted waters, and
in the process do nothing to protect those which have
remained unpolluted?"

* * * *

There are some waters, and the States know best which
ones they are, that have not yet suffered the fate of the
others. Do we let them suffer that same fate, or do we
resolve to apply the best preventive medicine at hand?

That is what the anti-degradation standard is about.

The purpose and intent of the Water Quality Act of
1965 was to " ... enhance the gquality and value of our
water resources ... " and the strategy of water quality
standards was to carry out that purpose and intent. Clearly
and simply, where standards as established and enforced
result in a lowering of the present high quality to that
level, we have not met the intent of the law on the books.
In fact, we will have worked counter to its purpose, because
a lowering of present quality without good and sufficient
reason and justification is the diametric opposite of "en-
hancing."
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What waters are we talking about?

We are talking about those high quality interstate
waters in which fish and other aquatic life propagation now
flourishes and is a beneficial use as designated in the water
quality standards of a State, but for which we do not now
have sufficient data to determine beyond doubt that the
criteria adopted in the standards is equal at least to the
existing high quality. To give an example, we have in mind
those waters for which standards criteria of 6 mg/l or higher
of dissolved oxygen have been established, and®there are at
present no significant natural or man-caused pollution source:
which otherwise render this water unfit for this most strin-
gent and sensitive resource use.

The difficulty, of course, is that we cannot now name
off each of the high quality waters which would come in
this category, for the simple reason that we do not always
know what the actual quality is at present, and thus cannot
compare it with the standards criteria that are established.
Both we and the States have concentrated our study and analy-
sis on where the problems are -- in the most polluted streams
and lakes. We will be working to get that same degree of
knowledge eventually for our highest quality waters, and the
question will simply disappear because the standards can
then be revised to reflect that quality and be enforced by
the States under normal procedures. But we caanot acquire
this knowledge overnight, even if we had the resources at
hand this very moment and jointly attacked this shortcoming.

At this point, then, the Secretary had an option. He
could except from his approval the standards for all those
high quality streams for which we have not enough data to
assure ourselves that the criteria reflect at least the
present quality, and approve them only after that knowledge
became available. To his way of thinking, however, this
course of action might have resulted in needless delay in
getting State action programs underway.

Secretary Udall therefore chose to go ahead and approve
the standards for such waters if it were possible to get a
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comnitment from the States that they would see to it that
such waters would be safeguarded and that every effort would
be made to prevent a lowering of the present quality except
for compelling economic or social reasons.

All we are asking, therefore, is a ccmmitment bv the
States to oreserve their high quality waters as best thev can
until the knowledce gav is overcome and the recular procedures
and requirements on changing and revising standards can be
follcwed as thev are svrelled out in the Act. This is the
sum, substance, purpose, and intent of our thinking and of
the suggested language which was publicized in the Secretary's
February 8, 1968, statement on this matter.

We are asking that this commitment by the States include
the following:

(a) that a provision be set forth to require the best
practicable degree of treatment for wastes dis-
charged into such high quality waters;

(b) that a lowering of the present high gquality be
justified by a demonstration of its economic or
social necessity;

(c) that some procedural provision be made whereby the
Department can be assured that the degree of treat-
ment is adequate and that the justification for
lowering the gquality has been set forth.

There is no question in my mind that this makes good
Common sense and enables both the States and the Department
go meet the purposes and intent of the law and discharge the
Joint responsibilities imposed reasonably and efficiently.

There is further no doubt that the Secretary has
defined reasonable limits within which he will
exercise his discretion under the Act. We have
good reason to believe, moreover, that the States
endorse the concept of the anti-degradation prin-
ciple. The difficulties we have encountered lay
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not with the concept but with the articulation

of the principle. In his standards approval
letters to the various Governors, the Secretary
has been careful to advise that he would like the
concept incorporated into the State standards in
"substantially" the form he suggested.

We have not insisted, and we do not now insist, on the
exact language proposed. The text as drafted provides for
a review by the Department of any projected use which would
lower the high quality of the interstate watgrs to be pro-
tected, and this has been seen as-an unwarranted invasion of
"States'Rights."” No such thing was intended.

As I have noted, the responsibilities under the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act are joint and properly require
cooperation at all levels of government. The inclusion of
this provision was to meet this objective and simultaneously
to notify persons and corporations of Uncle Sam's interest.
Many of you have already been, and are now, willing to make
adjustments which will be mutually satisfactory.

We are in an arena that is new, and the problems must
be mutually dealt with and adjusted without precipitous
action on the part of any echelon of government. We are
seeking to carry out the Congressional mandate, and this
mandate includes, among other things, the opportunity to
work with the States cooperatively and in a manner geared
to solve problems effectively and efficiently. This is our
intention.

J o not helieve that the States will find any diffi-
culty in maki ; and meeting such a commitment. In fact,
several States have already adopted, on their own motion
and without a single prior communication with Interior,
anti-degradation language more stringent than anything con-
templated by us. Other States saw no difficulty in adopting
our suggested language, with such modifications as suited
the special circumstances.
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I do not believe the States will find it difficult in
working with us to implement such a commitment. We prefer
the advisory roie to the adversarv role. It is far more
constructive to work together than to be locked in opposi-
tion. Nor do we intend to ineet our responsibilities from
a swivel chair in a carpeted office in Washington, D.C. We
have peorle on the scene, peoprle with delegated authority,
who work and talk and communicate with State and local
officials on a daily basis, who are familiar with local
proklems, who can make decisions as the need arises.

Let me emphasize, finally, that we have taken it on
faith, and we continue to take it on faith, that the States
and the Federal Government have the same purpose and the
same dedication ~-- to work toward Clean Water in accordance
with the will of the Public and the mandate of the Congress,
both as expressed in the law of the land and its waters
within.
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REMARKS BY JOE G. MCORE, JR., COMMISSIONER, FEDERAL WATER
POLLUTION CONTROL ADMINISTRATION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE
INTERIOR, BEFORE THE NATIONAL CONFERENCE OF STATE AND

FZDZRAL WATER OFFICIALS, DETROIT, MICHIGAN, JULY 10, 1968

The intent of the non-degradation statement released
by Secretary Udall in February has been obscured in the sub-
sequent snare over semantics. I do not believe there is any
basic disagreement between the States and the Federal
Government on the need to provide every possible protection

for our remaining high-quality waters. Events are proving
this point.

* * * *

I think all would agree that a minimal water pollution
control effort -- either by the States or by the Federal
Government -- will not effect the purpose of the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act "to enhance the quality and
value of our water resources." Nor will it fulfill the Act's
directive that standards of water quality "shall be such as
to protect the public health or welfare, enhance the quality
of water and serve the purposes of this Act."

* * * *

Certainly, those who argue against the anti-degradation
pOlicy statement conver‘ently overlook, or ignore, the clear
statutory mandate to e ‘'nce w-“er quality. In addition,
they would seem to suggest we ake the grievous mistake of.
concentrating on upgrading poor quality water while permitting
high quality water to be downgraded by inattention. Such a
colicy would place us on a treadmill; going nowhere:; cleaning
UD our dirty water while our clean water gets dirty.

There is some risk that continued controversy over the
7on-degradation question could delay effective abatement of
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existing pollution or application of adequate preventive
measures to new discharges. 1In so many ways, we have de-
layed too long to apply the technology we now have in waste
treatment. Any encouragement to those who see an advantage
in delaying corrective measures merely compounds the damage
and the ultimate cost. Thus full discussion and resolution
of both the non-degradation question and other standards
issues must be pursued.

We are all aware, of course, of the criticism leveled
at the principle of anti-degradation by the Western Governors'
Conference, the Southern Governors' Conference and the Asscci-
ation of Attorneys' General. And you are aware of the
specifics of the criticism. For example, the resolution
passed at the recent national meeting of the Association of
Attorneys' General said in part:

*...a number of Attorneys General have ... been apprised
by their respective State water pollution control officials
of actions by the Secretary of the Interior under the Federal
statute which appear to go beyond the spirit and letter of
the Congressional enactment by arrogating to a Federal admin-
istrative agency the authority to set effluent standards and
pass upon the legitimacy of water useces determined pursuant
to State law and policy ...."

I want to affirm here today that Federal water pollution
contrcl officials do not intend to fix effluent standards.
We are concerned with standards of water quality and with
making certain that the established criteria to permit as-
signed uses will be achieved within a reasonable time.

In the strict sense, an effective effluent standard
would have to state all allowable concentration in volume -
or total gquantity of all impurities which may be discharged
per unit of time.

It is true of course, that the water quality criteria
and plans to implement them are affected by waste discharges
and that the States have to consider the quality and quantity

of waste discharges in formulating standards and assigning
water uses,
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I wish to emphasize the reference {in Policy Guideline
No. 8) to "best practicable treatment of control." In dis-
cussions among Federal and State water pollution control
officials, and in fact among waste treatment engineers, this
phrase has been translated into "secondary treatment” pri-
marily for the sake of convenience. But we have not demanded
application of "secondary treatment"” to all effluents as a
pre-condition of approval of any State's standards. We have
and are asking that States commit themselves to requiring
"secondary treatment" levels or its equivalent, for all sub-
stantial municipal or industrial waste discharges. What we
are asking is that municipal and industrial waste discharges
be held as nearly as possible to the relatively same level
of effort in the upgrading of our water quality. Also, we
are asking that substantial wastes receive th? best practi-
cable degrez of treatmeat before discharge.

The Secretary did not say that the Government was going
to insist that the exact language contained in the February
news relase be adopted in all State water quality standards.
Quite the contrary. What he said was this:

"I have concluded that in order to be gonsistent with
the basic policy and objectives of the Water Quality Act a
provision in all State standards substantially in accordance
with the following is required."

In his letters to the Governors, Secretary Udall is
asking the States to include a non-degradation provision
“"substantially in accordance with" or "comparable" to the
illustrative provision.

In testimony before the House Co..iittee on Public Works
on May 2, Secretary Udall underlined the fact that he had
had no intention of proposing hard and fast language for
State anti-degradation provisions. He said:

"...we do not have any stock boilerplate language. We
work with each State in trying to get a piece of language
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that they can put in their standards that will, we believe,
satisfy the Act and then be workable in terms of whatever
problems they have. In other words, we have not said to
them that here is language, this has to be in yocur standards.
Wwe have said that we think that a certain objective is re-
guired by the Act, and we want to achieve it, and we want a
program that will be practical and feasible."

In other words, it is not the specific proposed langu-
age for State anti-degradation provisions but the intent of
the policy that should be discussed, considered and evaluvacted.

The fact is, the Secretary has approved a number of non-
degradation provisicns in State standards that are different
from the language originally suggested but which we deem to
be substantially in accordance with it. What we are inter-
ested in and have been interested in from the beginning is
a plan in each State that will keep the tragic history of
water pollution in this country from being repeated in every
last clean lake and stream that we have left. And we recog-
nize that there are different ways to state the principle
and achieve it.

Now, let me come right to th2 point and list the four
significant requirements for a State anti-degradation pro-
vision, requirements which have been transmitted to all
FWPCA regional directors for their guidance in assisting
State water polluticon control agencies. The reguirements are:

1. Commitment to the preservation of high quality
waters.

2, The best practicable degree of treatment for wastes
discharged into high guality waters.

3. Degradation only where necessary economic or social
development is demonstrated.

4, Some procedural commitment so that the Department of
the Interior (FWPCA) can be assured that the degree
of treatment is adequate and degradation is “neces-

sary."



More and more States are now utilizing these require-
ments as a framework for anti-degradation statements which
are acceptable to the FWPCA and the Department of the Interior.
Three States have acceptable language in original standards
submissions; seven States have submitted acceptable state-
ments since February; some twenty-five States have indicated
willingness to submit statements which have received varving
degrees of FWPCA staff discussion. Some States have langu-
age in their original submissions which meet one or more of
the recuirements I have indicated.

We are not going to quarrel with the semantics of an
anti-degradation statement. We are interested only in its
intent, its objectives, and its realization.

Let me give you an example. In April, water pollution
control representatives from Utah, Colorado, New Mexicc and
Wyoming developed for discussion purposes a tentative anti-
degradation provision. We would find this provision gener-
ally acceptable and for that reason I want to read it to you:

Waters whose existing gquality is better than
the established standards as of the date on
which such standards become effective will be
maintained at high gquality unless it has been
affirmatively demonstrated to the State that

a change is justifiable as a result of neces-
sary economic or social development and will
not preclude present and anticipated use of
such waters. Any industrial, public or private
project or development which would constitute

a new source of pollution or an increased
source of pollution to high quality waters wii
be required to provide the necessary degree of
waste treatment to maintain high water quality.
In implementing this policy, the Secretary of
the Interior will be kept advised and will be
provided with such information as he will need
to discharge his responsibilities under the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended.



In my opinion, this statement adequately fulfills the
four requirements which I outlined earlier.

Implementation of such a policy is and must be of
concern to both State and Federal governments. It is an
essential corollary to the Federal-State effort to raise the
guality of polluted water by effective water pollution
control.

The Water Quality Act of 1965 properly assigns a dual
role to the Federal and State governments. And this dual
role pertains to all sections of the Act, not just this one
or that one, depending on State or Federal preference at the
moment. The whole Act is based on the partnership concept.

Success of the national water pollution control effort
is dependent upon cooperation between the States and the
Federal Government, upon productive Federal-State relations.
And productive Federal-State relations in water pollution
control and related aspects of water quality management are
dependent, in turn, on substantial agreement both as to
objectives and as to the means for achieving them.

I might add here that in all of my discussions and of
those of my staff with the States concerning the anti-
degradation provision, I know of no State that has been
unwilling to commit itself to the preservation of high
Quality waters. Disagreement has centered around the means
to achieve this objective.

We seek to work honestly and cooperatively with all
States to help them implement such commitments. I don't mean
dictate to the States from an office in Washington. I mean
work with you at the regional level, where our representatives
are aware of State statutes and special State and local
Sroblems which must be studied and considered in the formu-
lation and administration of State water pollution control
Programs, or any aspect of such a program.

4 Our representatives on the scene -- your scene -- pOSSess
elegated authorities and responsibilities. And they can
make decisions when the occasion demands. One of my personal



objectives as Commissioner is to see that they respond to
your needs -- and respond quickly and with competence.

The water pollution control program is one of the few
that is founded upon unequivocal Federal law that contem-
plates an integrated Federal-State attack upon a problem.
This was one of the attractions for assuming my present
role. I'd like to see if we can't make such a program work
effectively. State water resources problems are not unkncwn
to me and my seventeen years with varied Texas governmental
agencies, including two Governors, has exposed me to a range
of Federal-State relations. I hope I can make a constructive
contribution to a relationship that is one of partners rather
than antagonists. '

I am convinced that the anti-degradation issue is well
on its way to resolution. I believe that most of the trouble
derives from misunderstanding, created in part by poor
communication and faulty interpretation.





